
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 6 February 2017

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
On: Tuesday 14 February 2017 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 
2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor B Boundy (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: J Himan, K James, D Brenton and R Julian

Non Elected Member: Alastair C Ashworth

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies 
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)
Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 November 2016.

3.  Action List (Page 11)

4.  Declaration of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.



- 2 -

5.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 

6.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair 

7.  Corporate Risk Register 
To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources)

8.  Faster Closedown of Accounts 
To receive a briefing from the Strategic Manager (Resources) and Grant Thornton 
LLP, External Auditors.

9.  Annual Certification Letter (Pages 12 - 14)
To receive the report of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors

10.  Anti Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy and Whistleblowing Policy (Pages 15 - 
39)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer

11.  Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 40 - 65)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager

12.  Review of Governance Evidence - Principle B2 (Pages 66 - 69)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer

13.  Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 70 - 91)
To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors

14.  Forward Plan (Page 92)

15.  Exclusion of the Public 
The Chair to move:-

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 and 7 of    Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

16.  Part II (Closed Session) 

17.  Audit Reports Issued to Date - Cyber Security Audit (Pages 93 - 94)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager

Meeting Organiser: Tom Vanstone - Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 29 November 2016 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillors B Boundy, J Himan, K James, D Brenton and 
R Julian

 Mr A Ashworth – Non-elected Representative

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
G Daly - Grant Thornton
R Hutchins - Devon Audit Partnership
C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer

APOLOGIES

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

14.   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 23 August 2016 were presented. 

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by A Ashworth and –

Resolved:

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For 5, Abstention 2)

Matters Arising

Minute No. 26 – ISA260 Audit Findings Report 2015/16 and Letter of 
Representation.

Councillor Himan asked if there was any update on further training for Committee 
Members. 

The Chair confirmed that Mr Ashworth, the Service Improvement Officer and 
himself would be attending the Audit Committee Meeting at Plymouth City Council 
on 8 December. 

The Service Improvement Officer also confirmed that Devon Audit Partnership and 
Grant Thornton would be providing some governance training.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

The Engagement Lead from Grant Thornton requested that the members of the 
Audit & Governance Committee share thoughts on what they would like to be 
trained on.

15.   ACTION LIST 

The Action List was noted.

16.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest.

17.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The agenda as circulated was agreed.

18.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

Members were informed that an additional meeting had been scheduled for the 14 
February 2017 at 2pm in Bideford Town Hall

19.   CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Service Improvement Officer presented a report of the Code of Corporate 
Governance for 2017. The Service Improvement Officer went through each 
principle within the Code of Corporate Governance. Members discussed the report 
and Councillor Julian requested that the word training be added to the report. The 
Service Improvement Officer confirmed that this would be added.

It was proposed by Councillor Julian, seconded by Mr Ashworth and –
Resolved:

That the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved.

(Vote: For Unanimous) 

20.   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - REVIEW OF EVIDENCE 

The Service Improvement Officer gave a detailed report into how the AGS 
Supporting Evidence reflects the governance framework. The Service Improvement 
Officer confirmed that the Council’s Governance Framework includes an evidence 
database which supports the Annual Governance Statement by providing examples 
of how Torridge meets the criteria set out in the Code of Governance.

The Service Improvement Officer confirmed overall that Torridge is achieving a high 
standard against the updated principles however this is an ongoing process so the 
Council can continue to improve governance across all areas.

Page 4



3

The Service Improvement Officer asked Members how they wish to gain assurance 
that the necessary evidence is in place. 

Mr Ashworth commented that the Council should continue to look at topics on a 
random basis as this checks style and form and that he would be happy for the 
chair of the Audit & Governance Committee to select the item at random for each 
A&G Meeting.

Councillor Himan agreed with Mr Ashworth and commented that it was a good way 
to move forward without having to go through everything.

The Engagement Lead commented that Torridge District Council sets its standard a 
lot higher than other Council’s and that she had never seen scrutiny so high, it’s 
excellent practise.

It was proposed by Councillor Julian, seconded by Councillor Brenton and –

Resolved

 That the updated evidence is noted 
 That the Council should continue to look at topics on a random basis 
 That Principle E.1 in Appendix B of the report should include the word 

training.

(Vote: For Unanimous)

21.   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

The Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton presented the Annual Audit Letter. 

The Engagement Lead confirmed that the letter summarises the work for 2015/16 
and confirms that Grant Thornton gave an unqualified opinion on the Councils 
financial statements on 25 August 2016, that Grant Thornton were satisfied that the 
Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 31March 2016. This was 
reflected in the audit opinion on 25 August 2016.

Mr Ashworth asked what was happening with any of the recommendation which 
Grant Thornton made. The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that there were 
5 recommendations being monitored of which two have been completed.

The Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton confirmed that they will receive an update 
on the recommendations in an official report.

Members duly noted the Annual Audit Letter.

22.   FASTER CLOSE DOWN OF THE COUNCIL'S ACCOUNTS 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave a brief update on the faster close down 
on the Council’s Accounts. It was confirmed that 2017/18 draft accounts will need to 

Page 5



4

be completed by 31 May rather than end of June. The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) confirmed that he will give a presentation on this topic at the next 
meeting in February.

The Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton confirmed that she will present at the 
February 14 meeting work done with other authorities on faster close down to show 
how this can be achieved.

23.   MANAGING THE RISK OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

The DAP Partnership Manager advised the Audit & Governance Committee of the 
results of a self assessment against the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 

The DAP Partnership Manager confirmed that there are effective and appropriate 
standards in place. It was confirmed that overall there are good principles to 
prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and corruption.

Members discussed the report and the report of managing the risk of fraud and 
corruption was noted.

24.   AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE 

The DAP Partnership Manager provided a summary of the audit reports issued to 
date. The four audits that were reported on were Northam Burrows, Income Other 
Routes, Council Tax and Tree Preservation Orders; all four reports were concluded 
with a ‘Good’ Opinion which means minimal risks identified. 

Members discussed each of the four reports and each report was noted.

25.   PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS 

The Service Improvement Officer provided an update on progress with 
implementing agreed actions. Since the A&G Committee in July 2016 there have 
been 8 internal audit reports issued containing 39 agreed new audit actions. In the 
same period there have been 31 actions completed by management. There have 
been no new high risk audit actions.

The Service Improvement Officer went through each of the 7 actions where the 
target date has been missed and explained to Members why these target dates had 
been missed.

2 of the actions requested a second extension. 

It was proposed by Councillor Boundy, seconded by Mr Ashworth and –

Resolved:

That the second extension be granted.

Page 6



5

(Vote: For Unanimous) 

1 of the actions requested a third extension. 

It was proposed by Councillor Boundy, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

That the third extension be granted.

(Vote: For Unanimous) 

Members discussed if the Tree Preservation Order Action should remain on the 
progress list or should be archived as it forms part of the Transforming Torridge 
Programme. 

It was proposed by the Chair, seconded by Councillor Boundy and –

Resolved:

That the action should be archived.

(Vote: For Unanimous)

26.   GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT 

The Engagement Lead gave a brief update. The Engagement Lead confirmed that 
she will be meeting the finance team on the 8 December to discuss items such as 
faster close down. 

The planed date for the 2017/18 Audit will be June & July with the findings being 
reported in August. These dates are provisional as it is dependent on how quick the 
close down is on the accounts.

The Engagement Lead confirmed that she has experience of faster close down so 
training will be provided to the finance team. 

The Engagement Lead confirmed that Grant Thornton had set up a blog on Brexit 
which includes information on how it will effect local government. The blog can be 
reached at http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-
shaping-the-debate/ 

Members noted the update.

27.   EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Service Improvement Officer reported on the feedback received following a 
survey on the effectiveness of the Audit & Governance Committee and invited 
Members and Officers to discuss.

Page 7

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/


6

The Chair was disappointed with how few responses had been received to the 
survey which was sent to all Members of the Council and all attendees of the A&G 
Committee. 

Members of the A&G Committee discussed that other Members do not fully know 
what the A&G Committee do. It was suggested that the Chair addresses Full 
Council on a regular basis to promote awareness, increase understanding and 
provide opportunity for questions to be asked. 

28.   APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS FROM 2018/19 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) reported to the A&G Committee the 
requirement to appoint external auditors for 2018/19 in order to make a 
recommendation to Full Council. 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) reminded the A&G Committee that at Full 
Council on 21 March 2016 it resolved:

That the option to set up an Auditor Panel individually and for Torridge 
District Council to individually appoint its own External Auditor from 2018/19 
be discounted and for Officers to investigate the remaining options with the 
Chair of Audit & Governance Committee to be fully involved in the process.

Members discussed the options and it was proposed by Councillor Brenton, 
seconded by Councillor Hackett and – 

Resolved:

That Torridge District Council opt into the national scheme for auditors 
appointments and formally accept the proposal from Public Sector Audit 
Appointments for 2018/19.

(Vote: For 5, Abstentions 2)

The Engagement Lead left the meeting at 15.55.

Councillor Himan left the meeting at 16.00.

29.   APPOINTMENT OF THE INTERNAL AUDITORS FROM 2017/18 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) reported to the A&G Committee the 
requirement to appoint internal auditors from 1 April 2017 in order to make a 
recommendation to Full Council. 

Members discussed the options and it was proposed by Councillor Brenton, 
seconded by Mr Ashworth and – 

Resolved:

 That Torridge District Council join the Devon Audit Partnership with effect 
from 1 April 2017 for a period of seven years with a review after five years. 

Page 8



7

However should Torridge wish to exit the partnership arrangement then we 
can trigger the clause by submitting notice to exit allowing a twelve month 
period to quit.

 That the Chair of Audit & Governance Committee be appointed as the 
nominated Member to represent Torridge on the Partnership Committee.

 The Vice Chair of Audit & Governance Committee be appointed as the 
nominated substitute Member to represent Torridge in the Partnership 
Committee in absence of the Chair.

(Vote: For Unanimous)

R. Hutchins (DAP) left the meeting whilst this items was discussed.

30.   FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan was noted and the Chair requested that the additional meeting to 
be held on 14 February be added to the Forward Plan.

31.   CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave a verbal update on the Corporate Risk 
Register.

 Following the review of all Service Risk Registers by Operational Managers, the 
Service Manager (Resources) went through each Risk and discussed any further 
actions required to reduce the risk and at what stage is each further action is 
currently at. 

The Members noted the report.

Mr Ashworth left the meeting at 16.15

32.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

It was proposed by Councillor Boundy, seconded by Councillor James and – 

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of 
the likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and  
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

33.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

PART II

Page 9



8

34.   CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave a verbal update on the confidential parts 
of the Corporate Risk Register. The Service Manager (Resources) went through the 
Risks and gave an update.
The Members noted the report.

Councillor James left the meeting at 16.30

35.   AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE - IT SECURITY AUDIT 

The DAP Partnership Manager gave an update on the IT Security Audit. 

The DAP Partnership Manager confirmed that the audit found five out of eleven 
controls tested were working effectively. The audit found that improvements can be 
made with regard to the policy framework, monitoring of customer satisfaction 
levels, inventory and disposal controls. 

The DAP Partnership Manager confirmed where issues were found, 
recommendations had been given to Management, and requested that the 
recommendations be implemented.

Members noted the report.

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

That the meeting return to Part I and that any press and public be readmitted.

(Vote: For unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 4.40 pm

Chair: Date:

Page 10



Audit & Governance Committee
Actions from meeting on 29 November 2016

Minute 
Number

Action raised by Action Responsible for 
Action

Contacted Completed

26 Councillor Hackett

Councillor Himan

The Chair to speak to the Grant Thornton Audit Manager 
regarding the issues discussed and would then ascertain 

whether it was necessary to set up a Task and Finish Group.

29/11 The Chair confirmed that Mr Ashworth, the Service 
Improvement Officer and himself would be attending the Audit 
Committee Meeting at Plymouth City Council on 8 December. 
Following this visit the Chair will then ascertain whether it was 

necessary to set up a Task and Finish Group

29/11 The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that Devon 
Audit Partnership and Grant Thornton would be providing 

some governance training.

Councillor Hackett

Councillor Hackett

Service Improvement 
Officer

Completed

Completed

19 Councillor Julian The Service Improvement Officer to add the word training to 
the code of corporate governance report.

Service Improvement 
Officer

Completed

20 Councillor Julian The Service Improvement Officer to add the word training to 
Principle E in Appendix B of the Annual Governance 

Statement.

Service Improvement 
Officer

Completed

27 Councillor Himan The Chair to address Full Council on a regular basis to 
promote awareness, increase understanding and provide 

opportunity for questions to be asked.

Councillor Hackett

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



Page 12

Agenda Item 9



Page 13



Page 14



Update of Anti-Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy

Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Update of the Policies on Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy 

and Whistleblowing
Date: 14th February 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To seek Members’ approval for the updated Whistleblowing Policy and 
updated Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The previous version of the Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy was last updated in 
February 2014 to reflect changes to processes such as risk management; staff awareness; 
changes to the Members Code of Conduct; and changes to contacts.

The current update reflects operational changes which have taken place since February 2014 
(specifically the creation of the Single Fraud Investigation Service by the DWP and the 
replacement of the in-house internal audit service) and also includes regulatory updates. 

In February the Whistleblowing policy was updated following recommendations in the 
Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults audit; the changes arising from the Enterprise and 
Regulation Reform Act 2013; and changes to post titles.

The current update emphasises the confidentiality/anonymity aspects of whistleblowing and 
updates job titles in line with organisational changes in 2014. It also includes two additional 
sections: ‘Review of Policy and ‘Communication.’ 

The pressure on Local Authorities to be vigorous in their approach when any fraudulent activity is 
discovered is undiminished, whether that be internal fraud, corruption or bribery or fraudulent 
benefit claims, perpetrators should be prosecuted whenever it is in the public interest to do so.  

The adoption of this updated/refreshed Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and 
Strategy, and Whistleblowing Policy will ensure a consistent approach is applied and that 
the Council operates to ‘best practice’ standards. 

2. REPORT
The Council has a responsibility to take the risk of fraud, corruption or bribery seriously and for 
many years has operated within an Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy which set out our 
approach zero tolerance of fraud and corruption. The policy has been reviewed and updated.

The objectives of the Policy are to:

 Provide a clear statement of the Council’s position on fraud and corruption;
 Minimise the risk to the Council’s good name and loss of its assets;
 Promote a culture of integrity and accountability, two of the fundamental principles of good 

governance, in members, staff and all those the Council does business with;
 Enhance existing procedures aimed at preventing, discouraging  and detecting fraud and 

corruption; and 
 Raise awareness of the risk of fraud and corruption being perpetrated against the Council.

Page 15

Agenda Item 10



Update of Anti-Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy

The Whistleblowing Policy supports the zero tolerance approach and sets out how those who 
need to refer an issue or concerns can do so safely with protection for the whistle-blower and the 
assurance that the matter will be investigated appropriately. For the Authority it ensures that 
evidence can be secured correctly at the earliest point to provide greater likelihood of successful 
investigation. 

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Changes from the Previous Version of the Document

The updated Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy are set out at Appendix A.

The updated Whistleblowing Policy is set out at Appendix B.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
To ensure that the Council complies with the Fraud Act 2006, the Bribery Act 2010, Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
No specific issues arise from this report and Strategy.

Risk Management
Updating the Strategy and Policies enables the Authority to communicate the zero tolerance 
stance to its members, officers and the public and this may deter those that consider that an 
attempted fraud is worth risking. The benefit is that the Authority demonstrates its commitment to 
an Anti Fraud culture, by the regular review, updating and approval of an Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Strategy

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference, and the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “These two policies are 
embedded in the Council’s culture of adopting a zero tolerance approach to fraud, corruption and 
bribery. The Council is committed to taking appropriate action to ensure compliance with these 
policies and to ensure Torridge retains a clean bill of health” 

Page 16



Update of Anti-Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy

  

4. CONCLUSIONS
The previous Anti-Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy together with the 
Whistleblowing Policy have been refreshed and updated to reflect recent changes.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Approve the updated Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy & Strategy and the 
updated Whistleblowing Policy. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace; 
Steve Hearse; 
Jamie Hollis
Robert Hutchins
Councillor Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: CIPFA Better Governance Forum: Managing the Risk of Fraud
CIPFA’s Fraud discussion forum
Existing policies and procedures including:

Financial and Contract Procedure Rules,  
Gift and Hospitality Registers for Members and Officers, 
Codes of Conduct for Members and Staff and
Disciplinary Procedures

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Issue Number 7 Date 14 February 2017 

Approved Audit & Governance 
Committee 

Next Review 
Date 

February 2019  
or as required 

 
  

Anti Fraud, Corruption 

and Bribery  

Policy and Strategy 

Page 18



 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This document sets out the zero tolerance position held by Torridge District Council on 
fraud, corruption and bribery. 

 
1.2 The objectives of an Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy and Strategy are to: 

 

 Provide a clear statement of the Council’s position on fraud, corruption and 
bribery; 

 Minimise the risk to the Council’s good name and loss of its assets; 
 Promote a culture of integrity and accountability, two of the fundamental 

principles of good governance, in members, staff and all those the Council 
does business with; 

 Enhance existing procedures aimed at preventing, discouraging  and detecting 
fraud, corruption and bribery; and  

 Raise awareness of the risk of fraud, corruption and bribery being perpetrated 
against the Council. 

 

1.3 In managing its responsibilities the Council is determined to protect itself against 
fraud and corruption both from within the authority and from outside. The Council 
is committed to an effective Policy and Strategy which is designed to: 

 
 Encourage prevention; 
 Promote detection; and 
 Identify a clear pathway for investigation. 
 

1.4 To combat fraud, corruption and bribery the Council’s Policy and Strategy is based 
on a series of comprehensive procedures. These cover: 

 

 Risk Management (paragraph 3); 
 Policy Statements (paragraph 5); 
 Deterrence and Prevention (paragraph 6); 
 Detection, Investigation, Sanctions and Redress (paragraph 7); and 
 Publicity and Training (paragraph 8) 

 

1.5 There is an inter-relationship between the Strategy and other existing Council 
policy documents. These include the Financial and Contract Procedure Rules, 
dealing with action to be taken when irregularities or suspected irregularities arise, 
the Whistle Blowing Policy, Gift and Hospitality Registers for Members and 
Officers, Codes of Conduct for Members and Staff and the Disciplinary 
Procedures.  

 
1.6 All references to ‘Members’ within this document refer to both elected members 

and co-opted members who sit on various committees. Likewise references to 
‘staff’ should be taken to include full and part-time staff and permanent, temporary 
and agency staff. 

 

Benefits Fraud 

 

1.7 Whilst the general principles outlined in this Strategy apply to all areas of the 
Council’s operations, it should be noted that a specific policy document is in place 
in respect of the prevention and detection of benefit fraud.  

Page 19



 

1.8 Housing Benefits investigation is via the Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS), 
operated by the Dept. of Work and Pensions (DWP) The SFIS will receive 
referrals from staff and the public and a whistleblowing telephone line and 
investigate these referrals. 

 

 
2.0 DEFINITION OF FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY 

 

Fraud 

 
2.1 Fraud has been defined as: the intentional and dishonest distortion of financial 

statements and other records by persons internal or external to the Council which 
is carried out to conceal the misappropriation of assets or otherwise for gain. 
(Source: CIPFA) 

 
2.2 The Fraud Act 2006 came into effect on 15 January 2007. The Act created a new 

general offence of fraud with three ways of committing it: 
 

 Fraud by false representation (dishonest representation) to gain or cause loss 
or risk of loss; 

 Fraud by failing to disclose information (where there is a legal duty, e.g. under 
written or oral contracts); 

 Fraud by abuse of position. 
 

It also created new offences: 
 

 Obtaining services dishonestly 
 Possessing, making and supplying articles for use in frauds 
 Fraudulent trading applicable to non-corporate traders. (extends Companies 

Acts to sole traders etc) 
 

Corruption 

 
2.3 Corruption has been defined as: the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an 

inducement or reward, which may influence a person to act against the interests of 
the organisation. (Source: Audit Commission) 

 

Bribery 

 
2.4 Bribery is defined as: The offering, giving or soliciting of an inducement or reward 

which may influence a person to perform a function or activity improperly. 
 
2.5 The 2012 Bribery Act says that a person is guilty of an offence if either of the 

following cases applies: 
 

Person A offers, promises or gives a financial or other advantage to another 
person, and 

  

Page 20



 

 Intends the advantage to induce Person B to perform improperly a relevant 
function or activity, or to reward a person for the improper performance of such 
a function or activity, or knows or believes that the acceptance of the 
advantage would itself constitute the improper performance of a relevant 
function or activity 

 
Person B is guilty of an offence if any of the following cases applies. 

 

 Where Person B requests, agrees to receive or accepts a financial or other 
advantage intending that, in consequence, a relevant function or activity should 
be performed improperly (whether by Person B or another person); or where 
the request, agreement or acceptance itself constitutes the improper 
performance by Person B of a relevant function or activity under the Bribery 
Act and organisation can be prosecuted if it has failed to prevent bribery.  

 

2.6 Public sector organisations are explicitly covered by the offences in sections 1, 2 
and 7 of the Act. 

 
2.7 Members and staff must note that this Policy and Strategy reflects the Council’s 

zero tolerance of both the offering and receipt of bribes. 
 

3.0 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

3.1 Areas most commonly at risk from fraud are both internal and external and include 
those involving the handling of any asset of an attractive and portable nature. 
Among typical high risk areas are cash, cheques, credit cards, contracts, income, 
payments, expense claims, housing benefits, loans, investments, payroll, grants 
and stores etc. 

 

3.2 Areas where corrupt practices or bribery may be found may include, but are not 
limited to the award of permissions, planning consents and licences, canvassing 
for appointments, hospitality, interests of members and officers, secondary 
employment of staff which may influence their work for an authority, pressure 
selling, tendering and award of contracts, settlement of contractors’ final accounts 
and claims and the disposal of assets. 

 

3.3 The risk of fraud, corruption and bribery is reflected in the Council’s Risk Register 
arrangements. The risk registers link to the Council’s objectives and priorities, and 
the systems of internal control.  

 

3.4 There is a specific risk register dealing with the risks and controls established for 
the prevention and detection of fraud, corruption and bribery. The risk 
management processes provide for ongoing monitoring that the controls are in 
place and effective as well as providing a further source of assurance for the 
annual audit opinion. There risk register gives consideration to 3.1 and 3.2 above.  

 

 
4.0 EXTERNAL SCRUTINY 

 

4.1 The Council is aware of the high level of external scrutiny of its affairs by a variety 
of bodies and individuals including: 

Page 21



 
 Local tax payers and community groups 
 Pressure groups 
 Service users 
 Local press 
 The Council’s external auditors 
 Government Departments and Agencies 
 HM Revenue and Customs 

 

4.2 The adoption of a formal anti fraud, corruption and bribery strategy will provide a 
degree of assurance to those external bodies and individuals interested in the 
Council’s activities. 
 

5.0 POLICY STATEMENTS 

 

Culture 

 
5.1 The Council is determined that the culture and tone of the organisation will be, and 

is seen to be, one of openness, honesty and opposition to fraud, corruption or 
bribery. 

 
5.2 The Council is committed to discouraging, preventing and detecting fraud, 

corruption and bribery where attempted on, or from within, the Council’s 
organisation. 

 

5.3 The Council expects members and staff at all levels to be aware of the standards 
of conduct expected of them and the procedures designed to reduce the risk of 
fraud, corruption and bribery occurring. 

 

5.4 Members and staff are responsible for their own conduct and compliance with this 
strategy and are required to comply with their respective codes of conduct. 

 

5.5 There is an expectation and requirement that individuals, suppliers and 
organisations associated in whatever way with the Council will act with integrity, 
and that members and Council staff will lead by example in these matters. 

 

Members and Staff 

 
5.6 Members and staff are positively encouraged to raise any concerns on fraud, 

corruption and bribery matters normally, but not exclusively, through a Senior 
Manager or other line manager. This they can do in the knowledge that such 
concerns will be treated in confidence and properly investigated. If necessary a 
route other than through a line manager may be used to raise such concerns, e.g. 
Internal Audit, Statutory Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer, or the Council’s 
External Auditor.    

 

5.7 The Council has drawn up a separate policy and procedure to deal with any area 
of concern that an employee may wish to bring to the attention of the 
management; the ‘Whistle Blowing Policy’. 

 

Page 22



5.8 The Council’s Monitoring Officer needs to be informed of any actual or suspected 
breaches of the law or codes of practice. The Governance Manager needs to be 
informed of any financial or procedural irregularities. The Statutory Finance 
Officer, Monitoring Officer and Governance Team discuss issues when suspected 
breaches of the law or codes of practice are identified. (See section 7 of this 
document relating to investigation).  

 

5.9 The primary responsibility for maintaining sound arrangements to prevent and 
detect fraud, corruption and bribery rests with management. Any manager made 
aware of suspected fraud, corruption and bribery will adopt defined procedures by: 

 

 Dealing promptly with the matter; 
 Recording all evidence received; 
 Ensuring that evidence is sound and adequately supported; 
 Ensuring security of evidence collected; 
 Notifying the Statutory Finance Officer, Governance Manager and the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer; & 
 Implementing Council disciplinary procedures were appropriate. 

 

5.10 Any abuse of this process by knowingly raising unfounded and/or malicious 
allegations may be dealt with as a disciplinary matter. 

 

5.11 The Council can be expected to deal swiftly and thoroughly with any member or 
member of staff who defrauds or attempts to defraud the Council or who is corrupt. 
The Council will be robust in dealing with financial malpractice. 

 

Partner Organisations and Members of the Public 

 

5.12 In addition, partner organisations or members of the public are also encouraged to 
report concerns through any of the above avenues.  The principles and processes 
described in this Strategy and its Appendices, and the Council’s Whistle Blowing 
Policy, will be applied to any concerns formally reported by partner organisations 
or members of the public. 

 

Monitoring 

 

5.13 The Statutory Finance Officer will monitor the effectiveness of all aspects of the 
arrangements for the anti fraud, corruption and bribery culture including the 
approach to investigations, success of sanctions and processes for recovering 
loss. On a risk basis, the Statutory Finance Officer will make informed judgements 
about the levels of budgetary investment in work to counter fraud, corruption and 
bribery. 

 

5.14 The Audit & Governance Committee’s terms of reference require them to monitor 
Council policies on whistleblowing and anti fraud, anti corruption and anti bribery.  

 
5.15 Lessons learnt from actions from suspected or proven fraud, corruption or bribery 

identified will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee, and the system 
changes required to ensure that the circumstances are not repeated.  

 

Page 23



6.0 DETERRENCE AND PREVENTION 

 

6.1 The effectiveness of the Council’s financial arrangements will have a major 
bearing on its ability to minimise fraud, corruption and bribery. To actively prevent 
fraud the Council must identify and remove the opportunity to commit crime from 
new policies and systems and to revise existing ones to remove apparent 
weaknesses. 

 
6.2 The Council will endeavour to act robustly and decisively when fraud, bribery or 

corruption is suspected and proven. This will be demonstrated through disciplinary 
action or prosecution. The Council will take action to help ensure the maximum 
recoveries for the Council.  

 
Prevention – Internal Controls 

 

6.3 As the appointed officer under ‘Section 151’ of the Local Government Act, 1972 
and also in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the 
Strategic Manager (Resources) has responsibility for making arrangements for the 
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, and is required to: 
 Maintain an effective accounting system; 
 Comply with statutory financial reporting deadlines; and 
 Maintain an adequate and effective internal audit. 
 

 The Regulations require that a Deputy Statutory Finance Officer be formally 
nominated. 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to ensure that it has 
adequate and effective financial management and a sound system of internal 
control. It must review the system annually and publish a statement with the 
accounts (the Annual Governance Statement).     

 
6.4 The Council’s Financial Procedure Rules (part of the Constitution) also set out the 

requirement to maintain a system of internal control, and the role of Internal Audit 
in reviewing the systems and to assist in the protection of the Council’s assets and 
the detection and prevention of fraud and error. In consultation with internal and 
external auditors, special attention within audit plans is paid to those activities 
particularly exposed to the risk of fraud, corruption and bribery (paragraph 3.0). 

 

6.5 The adequacy and appropriateness of the Council’s financial systems is 
independently reviewed by both internal and external audit. Senior management 
are required to be responsive to audit recommendations, and any issues raised.  

 
6.6 The Council’s arrangements for preventing fraud will be considered by the Audit & 

Governance Committee on a periodic basis. The arrangements may include 
Internal Audit carrying out pro-active and reactive work. 

 
6.7 The Governance Team will take the appropriate steps to communicate to the 

appropriate managers, on a timely basis, the details of any fraud bulletins 
(warnings) received from the external auditor and any other source to ensure 
safeguards are in place.  

 

Page 24



6.8 The Council will liaise and co-operate with other interested agencies and 
authorities, including the National Fraud Authority, Department for Work and 
Pensions, Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS), the Police, professional 
bodies, and other local authority networks, by, for example, exchanging 
information on current trends and remedies and membership of the National Anti 
Fraud Network (NAFN) and CIPFA’s TISonline forum. 

 
Prevention – Staff 

 

6.9 The Council recognises that a key preventative measure in the fight against fraud, 
corruption and bribery is to take effective steps at the recruitment stage to 
establish, as far as possible, the previous record of potential staff in terms of their 
propriety and integrity. Staff recruitment is therefore required to be in accordance 
with the Authority’s Recruitment policy, and, to obtain a written reference 
regarding known honesty and integrity of potential staff before employment offers 
are made. 

 
6.10 In the case of agency staff, references will have been taken by the agency to 

establish the honesty and integrity of the employee. 
 

6.11 Council staff are expected to follow any Code of Conduct related to their 
employment or to their professional bodies or qualifications. This will be 
emphasised in staff induction procedures. 

 
6.12 Employees who hold professional, trade or other appropriate qualifications are 

expected to comply with codes of conduct issued by the organisations of which 
they are members. 

 
6.13 Council staff are required to record offers of gifts or hospitality in any way related 

to their employment on the corporate register. 
 

6.14 Any relevant personal interests required to be declared in accordance with the 
employee Code of Conduct shall be notified to, and recorded by, the Monitoring 
Officer.  

 

Prevention – Members 

 

6.15 The Council’s Constitution contains a statement of the roles, functions, rights and 
duties of Members of the Council. All members are required to comply with the 
Constitution which includes a Code of Conduct.  

 
6.16 All members of the Council are required under the Council’s Code of Conduct to 

notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer of:  
 

 Any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 Any registerable interests or 
 Any prejudicial interests  
although the Code does also allow Members to seek dispensation from complying 
with any of these.  
 
In addition the Code requires Members to declare: 
  

Page 25



 Any offers of gifts or hospitality to a value exceeding £25, which are in any way 
related to the performance of their duties to the Council. 

 
6.17 The Authority has in place a Standards Committee that promotes and maintains 

high standards of member conduct and assists members to observe the code of 
conduct. 
 

 
7.0 DETECTION, INVESTIGATION, SANCTIONS AND REDRESS 

 

7.1 Prevention systems, particularly internal control systems, within the Council have 
been designed to provide indicators of any fraudulent activity. 

 

7.2 It is often the alertness of staff and the public to such indicators that enables 
detection to occur and the appropriate action to take place when there is evidence 
that fraud or corruption may be in progress. 

 

7.3 Despite the best efforts of financial managers and auditors, many frauds are 
discovered by chance or ‘tip off’, and the Council has in place arrangements to 
enable such information to be properly dealt with - the Whistle Blowing Policy and 
the Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Response Plan. The Whistleblowing Policy is 
available on the Council’s Intranet. 

 
7.4 Other methods of detection will be employed, on a risk basis, by those officers of 

the Council charged to do so e.g. Internal Audit. 
 

7.5 These will include analytical intelligence techniques and the sharing of information, 
within the data protection rules, with other agencies both locally and nationally. 
Examples of bodies involved in sharing such intelligence and data are the National 
Fraud Initiative (NFI), and the Benefit Agency (HBMS). 

 

Investigation 

 

7.6 An Investigating Officer will be appointed by the Head of Paid Service and/or 
Statutory Finance Officer, following liaison with the Monitoring Officer and Human 
Resources Manager, for fraud, corruption or bribery investigations. 

 
7.7 A detailed Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Response Plan has been written which 

contains flow diagrams showing the Reporting, Investigation and Action stages 
under the following headings: 

 
 Notifying Suspected Fraud 

 Line Management; 
 Confidential Reporting - Statutory Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer, 

Head of Paid Service, Internal Audit; 
 Investigating Suspected Fraud 

 Steps to be taken; 
 Responsibilities of the Investigating Officer 

 Liaison with External Audit and the Police 
 Interim Report/Final Report (including findings) 
 Potential Outcomes 

 Disciplinary; 

Page 26



 Prosecution; 
 Exoneration 

 Confidentiality 
 Postscript – Defamation 

 
7.8 The Response Plan is available to all staff on the Council’s Intranet.   
 
7.9 Depending on the nature and anticipated extent of the allegations, the 

investigating officer will normally work closely with management and other 
agencies such as the Police to ensure that all allegations and evidence are 
properly investigated and reported upon. 

 
7.10 Any control weaknesses identified by an investigation must be reported to the 

relevant manager to allow improvements to be made that will ensure that there is 
no opportunity for further fraud or corruption. 

 

Sanctions and Redress 

 

7.11 The Council’s Disciplinary Procedures will be used where the outcome of the 
Investigation indicates improper behaviour of staff. 

 
7.12 The Standards Committee would consider breaches of the Members Code of 

Conduct. 
 

7.13 For both staff and Members in cases where financial impropriety is discovered, the 
Council will normally wish the Police and Crown Prosecution Service to assess 
evidence and make the decision to prosecute or not. 

 

7.14 The Council will always seek to recover any losses incurred as a result of fraud, 
corruption or bribery, wherever this is practical, including the use of the civil law if 
appropriate. Losses will be calculated using a professional statistical methodology 
for making accurate estimates, building in a proper level of independent valuation 
as required.  

 

Investigations Not Involving Fraud or Corruption 

 

7.15 The investigation process related to the Council’s Disciplinary Procedures will only 
be used for those enquiries where no fraud, corruption or bribery is suspected. 

 
7.16 Should a disciplinary investigation subsequently be found to involve fraud, 

corruption or bribery the Human Resources Manager will suspend that 
investigation and ensure this Policy is followed.    

 

8.0 TRAINING AND PUBLICITY 

 

8.1 The Council recognises that the continuing success of its Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Policy and Strategy and its general credibility will depend largely on 
the effectiveness of programmed training and responsiveness of staff throughout 
the organisation through publication. 

  

Page 27



 

Training 

 
8.2 It is, therefore, apparent that all staff involved in fraud work should be properly and 

regularly trained in all aspects of it. The training plans of all relevant staff, 
produced annually as part of the Council’s appraisal system, will reflect this 
requirement and include both internal and external training provision. Such training 
will be tailored to the needs of the individual staff member concerned, and is 
therefore dependent upon knowledge and experience.  

 

8.3 The Council provides induction training for new employees which includes 
awareness of this and associated policies and the Council’s zero tolerance 
approach. Staff involved in internal control systems will receive training to ensure 
that their responsibilities and duties are regularly highlighted and reinforced. This 
can be linked with training and awareness of other key documents such as the 
Whistle Blowing Policy and Anti-Money Laundering procedures.   

 

8.4 The possibility of disciplinary action against staff that ignore such training and 
guidance is clear. 

 

Publicity 

 

8.5 Methods of publication of the Strategy and Response Plan will be sought, with the 
clear goal of ensuring that all staff are aware of the zero tolerance culture and 
targeting those officers in areas of high risk of fraud loss. 
 The Council’s Website; 
 Externally through the Council’s community publications; 
 The Council’s Intranet; 
 Staff Newsletters; 
 Member’s Bulletin or equivalent; 
 Promotional sessions at team meetings; 
 Flyer on Notice Boards or accompanying payslips; and 
 Occasional reminder e-mails to all staff and members. 

 

9.0 POLICY REVIEW 

 

9.1 The Council has in place a clear network of systems and procedures to assist in 
the fight against fraud, corruption and bribery. It is determined that these 
arrangements will keep pace with any future developments in both preventative 
and detection techniques regarding fraudulent or corrupt activity that may affect its 
operation. 

 

9.2 To this end, the Council maintains a continuous overview of such arrangements 
through, in particular, its Statutory Finance Officer and its Internal and External 
Auditors. 

 
9.3 This policy may be reviewed by the Statutory Finance Officer periodically or at the 

specific request of the Council’s Monitoring Officer, and formally updated at least 
every 3 years. 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Issue Number 7 Date 14 February 2017 

Approved Audit & Governance 
Committee 

Next Review Date February 2019  
or as required 

Whistleblowing Policy 

Page 29



1 
 

. 

 

 
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

 

1. Introduction 
 
 Whistleblowing is a procedure whereby employees can confidentially disclose their 

concerns about apparent wrong doings such as fraud, malpractice, breach of any 
health and safety law, or any other illegal act, either on the part of management or by 
fellow employees.  Employees are often the first to realise that there may be 
something seriously wrong within the Authority.  However, they may not express their 
concerns because they feel that making a formal complaint would be disloyal to their 
colleagues, their managers or to the Authority.  They may also fear victimisation.  So it 
may be easier to ignore the concern rather than report what may just be a suspicion of 
malpractice. 

 
The Authority is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, honesty 
and accountability. In line with that commitment, the Authority encourages 
employees, Councillors, and others with serious concerns about any aspect of 
the Authority’s work to come forward and voice those concerns. We appreciate 
that employees may not know the "whole picture" and that sometimes they may make 
a referral in good faith that, on investigation, turns out not to be an issue.  
 
We will support employees who raise concerns in good faith and under the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act (1998) (PIDA), a worker has the right not to suffer detriment or 
be unfairly dismissed as a result of speaking out about crime, fraud, miscarriages of 
justice or other malpractices. The Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 (ERRA) 
provided additional protection for whistle blowers.   

 
This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees to raise 
serious concerns within the Authority without fear of reprisal. 

 
All matters relating to fraud and corruption, while encompassed by the 
Whistleblowing Policy, are separately covered by the Anti Fraud, Corruption and 
Bribery Strategy.  If fraud and corruption are suspected, the Anti Fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery Strategy MUST be followed.  Therefore, any complaints 
of fraud and/or corruption that are reported through this Whistleblowing Policy 
will be investigated in accordance with the Authority’s Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Policy.  

 

2. Aims and Scope of the Policy 
 
 This policy aims to: 

 Encourage the whistleblower to feel confident in raising serious concerns  
 Provide avenues for the whistleblower to raise those concerns and receive 

feedback on any action taken 
 Ensure the whistleblower receives a response to their concerns and are aware 

of how to take the matter further if they are dissatisfied with the response 
 Reassure the whistleblower that they will be protected from possible reprisals or 

victimisation for whistleblowing in good faith 
 Provide anonymity for the whistleblower 

  

Page 30



2 
 

 

3. Eligibility 
 

This policy applies to all Council workers, including elected and co-opted Members, 
employees, staff of Council contractors, suppliers of goods and services and agency 
staff.  

 

4.  Qualifying Disclosure 
    

In order for a matter to receive consideration the whistleblower must: 
 

 Make the disclosure in good faith 
 Reasonably believe that the information disclosed, and any allegation contained 

in it, are substantially true 
 Not make the disclosure for personal gain 
 Believe the relevant concern is serious enough to warrant investigation. 

 

5. How to Identify Relevant Matters of Concern 
 

There are other procedures in place for employees and Members to lodge concerns 
including: 

 Grievance Procedure – matters relating to their own employment in the case of 
a Council employee 

 Dignity at Work Policy and Procedures – reporting behaviour that constitutes 
bullying or harassment 

 Complaints Procedure – standards of Service/Actions by staff from the public 
 Members’ Code of Conduct – matters relating to improper conduct by Members 
 Code of Conduct and The Deal - set out expected standards of conduct for 

employee’s  
 Corporate Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy – suggested or potential 

irregularity in the exercise of the Authority’s functions, including financial 
malpractice.  

 
This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to be an umbrella policy to ensure serious 
concerns that may potentially fall outside the scope of other policies are covered.  
These may include 

 Unlawful or improper conduct 
 Financial malpractice 
 Dangers to the public, colleagues, or the environment 
 Breaches of confidentiality and/or security 
 The provision or non-provision of care or services to a patient, or client group 
 A colleague’s professional conduct and/or performance 
 Something that is against the Authority’s Constitution, Procedure Rules and 

policies 
 Any concerns regarding the safeguarding of children or vulnerable adults 
 Other unethical conduct 

 
Examples of where the policy may be used include: 

 An employee becomes aware that the Authority’s Policies and Procedures or 
other Regulations governing the work of the Authority have been ignored. 

 An employee becomes aware of another employee submitting false travel or 
time sheets 

 Employee becomes aware that an officer is contravening legislation on Health 
and Safety Issues  

Page 31



3 
 

 
6.  How to Raise Concerns 
 

Where the whistleblower has concerns about malpractice and it is not appropriate to 
raise them through other procedures, such as grievance procedures, the whistleblower 
should raise them with an appropriate person. 

 
Who the whistleblower raises concerns with will depend on the seriousness and 
sensitivity of the issues involved and who is thought to be involved in the malpractice.  
For example, if the whistleblower believes that a manager is involved, the 
whistleblower should approach the Solicitor, the Statutory Finance Officer, Internal 
Audit or the Human Resources Manager. 

 
 Concerns may be raised verbally or in writing.  Those who wish to make a written 

report are invited to use the following format: 
 The background and history of the concern (giving relevant dates) 
 The reason why the whistleblower is particularly concerned about the situation 

 
The earlier the whistleblower expresses their concern the easier it is to take action.  
The whistleblower is not expected to prove beyond doubt the truth of an allegation but 
will need to demonstrate to the person contacted that there are reasonable grounds for 
the concern. 

 
The whistleblower may obtain advice and guidance on how to pursue matters of 
concern from the Human Resources Manager, the Solicitor, the Statutory Finance 
Officer, Internal Audit or their Trade Union.  They may wish to discuss their concern 
with a colleague or may find it easier to raise an issue if there is more than one person 
who has had a similar experience or concern. 

 
The whistleblower may invite a trade union representative, a professional association 
representative or a friend or colleague to attend any meetings or interviews in 
connection with the concerns raised.  

 
Any complaints of fraud or corruption that are reported through this 
Whistleblowing Policy will be referred to the Council’s Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Strategy.   
 
 

7.  How the Council will respond 
 

Initial Review 
 

The officer receiving the complaint will quickly assess whether it is: 
 A matter for Human Resources or Internal Audit to investigate and if so pass 

the details to HR or Internal Audit as soon as possible and within 5 days ; or  
 A matter that does not fall within the Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery 

Strategy but does need to be conducted by a relevant /senior officer, and if so 
to pass the details to an Investigating Officer as soon as possible and within 5 
days; or 

 It is a matter that is within their remit to deal with.  
 In exceptional circumstances the complaint may require notification to the 

Police for investigation. 
 
  

Page 32



4 
 

 
The complaint will then be reviewed to establish whether an investigation is 
appropriate and if so what form it should take, having regard to the overriding principle 
of the public interest. Where the allegation relates to a Manager or above then this will 
be conducted by an Investigating Officer selected from those listed below. This review 
will be commenced within 10 working days of the concern being raised, and the 
whistleblower will be notified in writing, to their home address or delivered by hand, 
within 10 calendar days of the outcome of this initial review.  

 
Investigating officers may be the Senior Solicitor, the Statutory Finance Officer, 
Internal Audit, the Human Resources Manager or other nominated Senior Officer.  

 
 The Investigating Officer will contact the whistleblower by an agreed method (which 

may be their home address) to: 
 Acknowledge that the concern has been received 
 Indicate how they intend to deal with the matter raised 
 Estimate how long it will be before there is a final response 
 Provide information on support mechanisms 

 
 Further Investigations 

  
 Where further investigations are required these must be completed within six weeks, 

but extensions will be granted when necessary.  The aim of these timescales is to 
ensure that all cases of whistleblowing are dealt with as soon as possible.   

 
 If it is necessary to arrange a meeting with the whistle blower, this may be arranged off 

site. The whistleblower may be accompanied by a union or professional association 
representative or a friend.   

 
 The investigating officer will: 

 Fully investigate the complaint with the assistance of other individuals/bodies 
when appropriate. 

 If action is considered appropriate, present a report concerning the complaint 
and the validity of the complaint. The report will be made to the relevant Senior 
Manager for consideration of what action needs to be taken e.g. invoking the 
disciplinary or other procedures. Care is to be taken to ensure that the officer is 
appropriate in terms of service and seniority, but with regard to the 
requirements of which senior officers need to sit on disciplinary and grievance 
hearings. 

 Where appropriate inform staff against whom a complaint is made as soon as is 
practically possible.  The member of staff will be informed of their right to be 
accompanied or represented. 

 
If the whistleblower is not satisfied that the Investigating Officer is properly dealing with 
the concern, they should discuss this with the Solicitor or the Head of Paid Service. 
 
The Authority will take steps to minimise any difficulties that the whistleblower may 
experience as a result of raising a concern.  For example if they are required to give 
evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings the Authority will arrange for them to 
receive advice about the procedure. 

 
 The Authority accepts that the whistleblower needs to be assured that the matter has 

been properly addressed.  Thus, subject to legal constraints, we will inform them of the 
progress and outcomes of any investigation. 

  

Page 33



5 
 

 
 
8.  The Responsible Officer 
 
 The Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation 

of this policy and will report as necessary to the Council.   
 
 The Senior Solicitor maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a 

form that does not endanger confidentiality). Internal Audit and the Human Resources 
Manager may also retain a copy. 

 

9. How the Matter can be taken Further 
  

This policy is intended to provide a whistleblower with an avenue within the Authority 
to raise concerns.  The Authority aims to ensure that the whistleblower will be satisfied 
with any action taken.  If not, and the person wishes to take the matter outside the 
Authority, the following are possible contact points who can receive whistleblowing 
reports: 

 the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton 
 the Police 

 
Alternatively if you need advice about what to do you could approach the following 
organisations for confidential advice: 

 your trade union representative  
 the local Citizens Advice Bureau 
 Public Concern at Work (a whistleblowing charity who operate a confidential 

advice line) 
 
If the whistleblower does take the matter outside the Authority they should ensure they 
do not disclose confidential information. It is suggested they should check with the 
Senior Solicitor if they have concerns about confidentiality, or the protection available 
under the Public Interest Disclosure Act. 

 
In addition to the above Members are now able to disclose information in accordance 
with their Code of Conduct.  

 
10. Protecting Whistleblowers’ Confidentiality 
 

The Authority will seek to protect a person’s identity when they raise a concern and do 
not want their name to be disclosed.  Employees will be protected from distress, 
including giving evidence in front of the person against whom the allegations are being 
made, wherever possible.  However, during the investigation, the source of the 
information may be revealed and you may be required to provide a statement or come 
forward as a formal witness. 

 

11. Untrue Allegations 
 

If a whistleblower raises a concern in good faith, but it is not confirmed by the 
investigations, no action will be taken against them.  If, however, an unfounded 
allegation is made maliciously or for personal gain, disciplinary action will be taken 
against the person.  In an extreme case malicious or speculative allegations could give 
rise to legal action on the part of the person/s complained about. 

 

Page 34



6 
 

 
 
12.  Anonymous Allegations 
 

Whistleblowers are encouraged to put their name to any allegations made.  However, 
it is understood that some people may wish to remain anonymous.  Concerns 
expressed in this way are much less powerful, but will be considered, at the discretion 
of the Authority. 

 
In exercising this discretion, the factors to be taken into account would include: 

 The seriousness of the issues raised 
 The credibility of the concern 
 The likelihood of confirming the allegation from other sources 

 
13. Victimisation 
  

The Authority will not tolerate bullying, harassment or victimisation and will take action 
to protect whistleblowers when they raise a concern in good faith. 

 
If a whistleblower receives reprisals from those responsible for the malpractice or any 
other member of staff, the Authority will take the matter very seriously and where 
appropriate take disciplinary action.  
 

14. Review of Policy 
  

As part of the Council’s governance arrangements the Audit & Governance Committee 
periodically review and approve the arrangements by which staff of the Council may, in 
confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial 
reporting or other matters. The Audit & Governance Committee are responsible for 
ensuring that arrangements are in place for the proportionate and independent 
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action. 
 

15. Communication 
 
This policy is available on both the Staff Intranet and the Public Website. To ensure 
the policy is easy to understand it is supported by an easy to use ‘Whistleblowing – 
Employee Guide’ and a ‘Whistleblowing – Manager’s Guide’. Whistleblowing is also a 
topic presented at staff induction sessions and copies of the ‘Whistleblowing – 
Employee Guide’ are handed out at Staff Induction sessions.   
 
The staff newsletter includes regular reminders of the purpose and availability of the 
Whistleblowing Policy. 
 
 

Page 35



 

 

Whistleblowing -  
An Employee Guide 

 

 

What is Whistleblowing ? 
Whistleblowing is reporting something that 
you are aware of that you think or know is 
wrong that affects the Council. You should 
report any concerns you may have. 
 

This is a responsibility we all have whether a 
casual employee cleaning the offices, 
working at a swimming pool in Holsworthy or 
employed as the Finance Manager.  
 
What sort of things might be reported ? 

Fraud – this means someone is deliberately 
misleading the Council in order to gain an 
advantage. For example someone with the 
power to authorise invoices might manage to 
submit a false invoice for goods that the 
Council hasn’t received.  
 

Bribery – this means any act involved in 
offering or receiving a bribe or other 
inducement to influence a decision. For 
example trying to bribe a Councillor in order 
to obtain planning permission. 
 

Collusion - this means two or more people 
have privately arranged that one of them will 
gain an improper advantage. For example 3 
contractors could come to an agreement that 
2 of them will submit inflated prices so the 
third contractor is more likely to win work 
from the Council. 
 

 
Probity – this is about making sure that the 
right things happen, so that we protect 
honesty, truth, openness and trust. Anything 
that isn’t in line with probity should be 
reported. 
 

Each year Fraud within the public sector costs 
the taxpayer hundreds of millions of pounds. 

Detected cases of fraud and corruption are 
on the increase. All public sector 
organisations are likely to be affected in 
some way by fraudulent or corrupt activity. 
 

The Council’s Policy 
It is Council policy that all employees and 
people employed on Council contracts must 
report suspected or potential irregularities 
immediately. This could be to your Manager 
or to any of the people listed on the rear of 
this leaflet. The Council has a zero 
tolerance policy on irregularity. It will not 
tolerate any fraud or corruption.  
   

First Steps 
We realise you may want to talk over your 
concerns first, so in the first instance you 
can talk to any manager, or a trade union 
representative. 
 

It is very important that you do not 
investigate the issue yourself; you could 
damage any evidence that may then prevent 
us (or the Police) from taking action against 
the perpetrator. Evidence must be protected 
– the Police have reported nationally that 

 

 
they cannot prosecute over half of fraud 
and corruption cases because of 
inappropriate action taken before the case 
is referred to them. The action that you 
take when you first suspect fraudulent 
activity may be crucial. 

 
Acting Upon Your Suspicions 

– the Do’s and Don’ts 
If you suspect a fraud or irregularity within 
the workplace, there are a few simple 
guidelines that should be followed:  
 

The 3 Do’s 
1) Do make an immediate note of your 
concerns 
Note all relevant details, such as what was 
said in telephone or other conversations, 
the date, time and names of any parties 
involved. It may help to keep a diary if 
initially you are not certain, but also follow 
steps 2 and 3.  
 
2) Do convey your suspicions to 
someone with appropriate authority and 
experience, preferably in writing.  
The Council would prefer you not to do this 
anonymously so that if necessary further 
information can be obtained. However 
anonymous complaints will be investigated.  
  
If you prefer you may ask a friend or a 
Trade Union representative to raise the 
matter on your behalf. Even if you raise the 
matter yourself, a Union representative, a 

 

 

P
age 36



 

Need Further Advice ? 
 

If you need further advice you can 
contact the following people: 

 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance 

Officer on 01237 428967 
 

Jamie Hollis, Senior Solicitor 
on 01237 428701 

 
Sarah Ayres, HR Manager 

on 01237 428791 
 

Chris Dobbs, Governance Team  
on 01237 428789 

 
Robert Hutchins, Internal Audit 

(Devon Audit Partnership) 
on 01392 383000 

 
Grant Thornton, External Audit 

on 0117 305 7600  

 
friend or colleague may accompany you 
to any meeting on the issue. It is the 
responsibility of the person to whom you 
report your suspicion to ensure it is 
investigated. 

 
3) Do deal with the matter promptly.  

Any delay may cause the Council to 
suffer further loss. 

 

Where possible you will be kept informed 
of the progress of the investigation and its 
outcome. Depending upon the findings of 
the internal investigation, the matter could 
be referred to the external auditors Grant 
Thornton or the Police for attention. 

 
The 7 Don’ts 

1) Don’t do nothing 
 
2) Don’t be afraid of raising your 

concerns.  
 The Council will treat any matter you 

raise sensitively and confidentially and 
will not tolerate harassment or 
victimisation.  

 
3) Don’t approach or accuse any 

individuals directly. 
 
4) Don’t try to investigate the matter 

yourself.  
 

5) Don’t allow irregularities to fester. 
 
 

 

6) Don’t convey your suspicions to 
anyone other than those with the 
proper authority. 

 Public disclosure of a suspicion could 
ruin hard won reputations and destroy 
public confidence. However, you may 
raise the matter with our external 
auditors (Grant Thornton) or the Police 
if your suspicions relate to ALL those 
officers with whom you would be 
expected to raise the matter internally, 
or if we have failed to investigate your 
concern without explaining why an 
investigation is not appropriate. Please 
do consider discussing the issue with 
the Head of Paid Service before 
reporting it externally. 

 
7) Don’t act maliciously or seek only to 

cause annoyance.  
 Always act in good faith 

 

Summary 
 

 Note all relevant details, but do 
not attempt to investigate the 
matter further yourself. 

 

 Report all suspicions promptly to 
the appropriate person. 

 

 If in doubt, report your suspicions 
anyway. 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Or you can talk to: 
 

Any Manager 
or  

Any Trade Union Representative:  
 

 
1/1/2017 

P
age 37



 

 

Fraud, Corruption & Bribery 
A Guide for Managers 

 
How should YOU react to suspected FRAUD? 

 

 

Why you should read this Guide 
 

Fraud within the public sector is estimated to cost 
the taxpayer billions each year.  
 

Detected cases of fraud and corruption are on the 
increase. All public sector organisations are likely to 
be affected in some way by fraudulent or corrupt 
activity. In addition the Bribery Act was introduced 
from June 2011, and this applies equally to local 
authorities as well as the private sector. 
 

As a manager, it is possible that you may encounter 
fraud, corruption or bribery first hand.  
 

The Police have in the past reported nationally that 
they cannot prosecute over half of fraud and 
corruption cases because of inappropriate action 
taken before the case is referred to them.  
 

The Council is committed to tackling the issue and 
we all have a responsibility to ensure any reported 
malpractice is dealt with properly. It may be 
suspected fraudulent activity, an irregularity or a 
serious failure of work standards. The action that 
you take when you first identify, or are made aware 
of, the matter, may be crucial in determining the 
success of any subsequent investigation. 
 

It is your responsibility to ensure that suspicions 
reported to you are investigated 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The Council’s Response to  
Fraud and Corruption 

 

Under the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules all 
employees have an obligation to report suspected 
or potential irregularities. Paragraph 4.3.12 of the 
Rules states: 
 

“In the case of any suggested or potential 
irregularity in the exercise of the Council’s 
functions the officer concerned shall 
immediately notify” one of the specified 
contacts who will take the necessary steps by 
way of investigation and report.” 

 

All fraud or bribery must be reported at the earliest 
opportunity and all frauds or suspected irregularities 
will be investigated. 

 

Acting Upon Your Suspicions 
– the Do’s and Don’ts 

 

One of the specified contacts will give all necessary 
advice. There are, however, some common sense 
rules that can be applied in all cases where fraud, 
corruption or bribery is suspected within the 
workplace: 
 

The 5 Do’s 
 

1 Be responsive to officer’s concerns.  
You need to encourage your officers to voice any 
reasonably held suspicion as part of developing 
an effective anti-fraud culture. When a concern is 
raised you should acknowledge it and treat it 
seriously, confidentially and sensitively.  
 

Although anonymous tip-offs are discouraged, 
ALL reasonable complaints must be 
investigated. Failure to do so may result in the 
employee raising the matter directly with the 
External Auditors or the Police. 
 

 
 

Officers may ask their Trade Union 
representative to either raise an issue for them or  
to attend any meetings with them. Alternatively 
they may have a friend with them at any 
meetings on the issue. 

 

2 Do note details.  
Make a note of all relevant dates, times and 
events. Obtain as much information as possible 
from the officer. A statement might be required 
as part of the evidence, but this will be dealt with 
during the course of the subsequent 
investigation. 
 

If the employee has made any notes or diary 
entries, take a copy of these also. In addition, 
note any documentary evidence which may exist 
to support the allegations made, but do not 
interfere with this evidence in any way. 

 

3 Do evaluate the allegation objectively.  
Before you take the matter further, in accordance 
with the whistleblowing policy you need to decide 
whether the suspicions suggest this is fraud, 
bribery or corruption. Be objective and consider 
the facts as they appear, based on the 
information you have to hand and any further 
information sought from the officer. If in doubt 
consult one of the specified contacts. 

 

4 Do advise the appropriate person. If you feel 
that a suspicion of irregularity is justified, you 
should notify one of the specified contacts and 
arrange to hand over the information gathered, 
and where anonymity is not an issue, the 
officer’s name and contact details. Someone will 
be assigned to investigate and inform the officer 
of what will happen next (although it may not 
always be possible to inform them of the 
progress of the investigation and its outcome). 

 

 
 
 

 

P
age 38



 

Need Further Advice ? 
 

If you need further advice the 
specified contacts are: 

 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance 

Officer on 01237 428967 
 

Jamie Hollis, Senior Solicitor 
on 01237 428701 

 
Sarah Ayres, HR Manager  

on 01237 428791 
 

Chris Dobbs, Governance Team  
on 01237 428789 

 
Rob Hutchins, Internal Audit 
(Devon Audit Partnership) 

On 01392 383000 
 

Grant Thornton (external auditors) 
on 0117 305 7600  

5 Deal with the matter promptly if you feel the 
concerns are warranted.  Any delay may 
cause the Council to suffer further financial loss. 
Depending upon the findings of the internal  
investigation, the matter could be referred to the 

External Auditors or the Police for attention.  
 

The 5 Don’ts 
 

1 Don’t ridicule suspicions raised by officers. 
The Council cannot operate an effective anti-
fraud policy if employees are reluctant to pass on 
their concerns to management. 

 

Employees may be reluctant to raise concerns 
for fear of ridicule or recrimination. 

 

You should ensure you listen to all officers’ 
concerns and reassure them that they will not 
suffer any recrimination as a result of raising any 
reasonably held suspicion. You can refer them to 
the Whistleblowing policy for details of this. 

 

In particular, you should note that employees are 
protected from victimisation, dismissal and 
selection for redundancy under the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 2013 when making 
certain disclosures of information in the public 
interest. Compensation may be payable if any 
such victimisation occurs. The Council’s Senior 
Solicitor will provide advice to employees, in 
confidence, on whether a proposed disclosure 
would be protected under the Act.  

 

2 Don’t disclose to any person being 
investigated the source of the information. 
The Council is committed to protecting those 
officers who report suspicions from harassment 
or victimisation. 

 

3 Don’t approach or accuse any individuals 
directly. 

 

4 Don’t convey your suspicions to anyone 
other than those with proper authority. 

 

5 Don’t try to investigate the matter yourself. 
Remember that poorly managed investigations 
are highly likely to jeopardise any successful 
criminal prosecution. 

 

Summary of Manager’s 
Responsibilities 

 

 Become familiar with these principles 
and to whom suspicions should be 
reported.  

 If you receive a report of suspected 
fraud, corruption or bribery make a 
note of all relevant details, but do not 
attempt to investigate the matter 
further yourself. 

 Report all reasonable suspicions 
promptly to one of the specified 
contacts. If in doubt report the 
suspicions. 

 
 

Investigating Suspected Irregularities 
 

The Whistleblowing policy and Financial 
Procedure Rules explain who the investigating 
officers are for fraud, corruption and 
irregularity issues. The officers are specifically 
trained to investigate such cases.  
 

Evidence will be gathered in accordance with 
the Police and Criminal Evidence Act and 
other legislation and the investigation will be 
managed to ensure that suspects are not 
prematurely alerted or evidence destroyed. 
 

Managers may be required to assist the 
investigation but this will be under very 
specific guidance. The investigators will be 
responsible for notifying the whistleblowing 
officer of any matters.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12/11/2014 
 

P
age 39



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date
Date: 14th February 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports issued 
to ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports. 

Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the Service 
Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives the 
opportunity for Members as a group to discuss any related matters.

This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously reported. 

2. REPORT
A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A. 

There are eleven audits to be reported upon: 
 Safeguarding
 Section 106 (Follow-Up to previous audit)
 Travel and Subsistence
 Culture and Ethics
 Planning Enforcement
 Main Accounting
 NNDR
 Insurance
 Creditors
 Register of Interests
 Payroll

The ICT Cyber Security audit report has been classified as ‘confidential’ and will be reported 
separately as a Part II item.

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Page 40

Agenda Item 11



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework. Any agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit 
reports include those risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are 
reported separately and directly to management for them to manage. Progress with 
implementing actions is reported to the Head of Paid Service (or Senior Management Team) and 
to the Audit & Governance committee on a quarterly basis.
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”   

4. CONCLUSIONS
Three reports have been issued since the meeting in July. The opinions for these audits at the 
time of publication were:

Opinion Audit
‘Good’
(which means minimal risks identified)

Travel & Subsistence; Culture & Ethics; 
NNDR; Insurance; Main Accounting; 
Register of Interests; Payroll

‘Satisfactory/Good’ 
(which means some controls could be 
strengthened)

Creditors; 

‘Satisfactory’ 
(which means some risks have been identified)

Safeguarding; 

‘Marginal/Satisfactory’
(which means a number of risks have been 
identified)

Section 106 (Follow Up); 
Planning Enforcement;

Opinions range from: Good; Satisfactory; Satisfactory/Good; Satisfactory / Marginal; Marginal / 
Satisfactory; Marginal; Unsatisfactory; and, Unsound.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Note the reports issued this quarter and to raise any queries, suggestions or proposals relating to 
the three audits in this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Jamie Hollis
Councillors - Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 41



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Appendix A
Safeguarding – Satisfactory (6/9 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (Jan 2013) – Marginal/Satisfactory (5/9 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

Safeguarding can be defined as: the promotion of a safe working environment and a culture of care in which the rights 
of all children, young people and adults with care and support needs are protected and respected. 
Improving the way key people and bodies safeguard and promote the welfare of children is crucial to improving 
outcomes for children. Section 11 (s.11) of the Children Act 2004 places a statutory duty on key organisations to make 
arrangements to ensure that in discharging their functions they have regard to the need to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children.  

It is important to note that s.11 does not give agencies any new functions, nor does it over-ride their existing functions. 
Instead it requires organisations to carry out their existing functions in a way that takes into account the need to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children. In accordance with Working Together 2015, (the latest guidance 
effective from April 2013) s.11 compliance is a mandatory requirement for the following key organisations:
 Local Authorities and district councils that provide children’s and other types of services, including children’s and 

adult social care services, public health, housing, sport, culture and leisure services, licensing authorities and 
youth services.

 NHS organisations, including the NHS Commissioning Board and clinical commissioning groups, NHS Trusts 
and NHS Foundation Trusts

 Police including police and crime commissioners, the chief officer of each police force in England and the British 
Transport Police

 The Probation Service; Governors/Directors of Prisons and Young Offender Institutions; Directors of Secure 
Training Centres; and Youth Offending Teams/Services

Effective safeguarding arrangements in every local area should be underpinned by two key principles: "safeguarding 
is everyone's responsibility" so for services to be effective each professional and organisation should play their full 
part; and "a child-centred approach is required" so for services to be effective they should be based on a clear 
understanding of the needs and views of children.

Section 13 of the Children Act 2004 requires each local authority to establish a Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) for their area and specifies the organisations and individuals that should be represented on LSCBs. Devon 
County Council operate the Devon Safeguarding Children Board (DSCB) and it also has a Devon Safeguarding Adults 
Board. The Chief Exec of Mid Devon District Council sits on DSCB as the representative for all district councils. He 
feeds back to the District Chief Execs and Leaders at the regular meeting of the Devon District Forum. 

This Authority is required to provide assurance to the DSCB on the arrangements we have in place. This takes the 
form of a simple assurance statement based on s.11. The Authority is NOT responsible for investigating allegations or 
deciding on whether abuse is taking place. The role is to ensure we refer concerns, prevent known abusers from 
being employed in posts in contact with children, and communicate effectively within the Authority and with other 
agencies.
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that five of the nine controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be made with 
regard to training, awareness raising and with greater collaboration with the Adult and Children Safeguarding Boards. 

Management Response

Customer Support Manager - This is a positive audit as it recognised the improvements that have been made within 
the service since the last audit. 

We will continue to support staff and Members with training and work with our partner agencies to ensure the 
promotion of a safe working environment and a culture of care in which the rights of all children, young people and 
adults with care and support needs are protected and respected.

See following page for control table:
Page 42



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

SAFEGUARDING- SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

N
ov 16

N
ov 16

C1. Senior management have 
commitment to the importance of 
safeguarding and promoting children’s 
welfare and have named a senior officer to 
take a lead on what the Authority does to 
keep children safe.

The Authority have appointed a Strategic Manager to the 
role of Lead Safeguarding Officer. A Service Manager is 
now the Deputy Safeguarding Officer and the Head of 
Paid Service has overall responsibility for Safeguarding 
arrangements.

G G

C2. There is a clear statement of the 
Authority’s responsibility towards children 
and this is available to all staff. It includes 
arrangements for promptly managing / 
referring concerns.

The Devon Districts Joint Safeguarding Policy has now 
been adopted and approved by members. The Policy 
establishes the responsibilities of members, officers and 
teams in dealing with safeguarding issues including 
referrals.

G G

C3. There is an understood structure and 
lines of accountability for safeguarding and 
promoting the welfare of children.

Delegations are established within the Joint Safeguarding 
Policy. 

G G

C4. Service developments take into 
account the need to safeguard and 
promote welfare and are informed, where 
appropriate, by the views of children & 
families.

Contractual arrangements such as those with 1610 for 
leisure services include safeguarding requirements. 
Children and families would not usually be involved in 
service developments as the Authority is not a front line 
provider of services for Children and young people.

G G

C5. There is effective supervision and 
training on safeguarding for all staff 
working with or in contact with children & 
families. 

Since the last audit the Authority has rolled out a training 
programme for all key staff. The Lead Member for 
Safeguarding and a visiting officer have not yet had the 
opportunity to attend. Not all members attended the 
induction session on safeguarding.

A A

C6. Safe recruitment practices are 
established which comply with legislation 
and guidance 

The Human Resources team have an up to date 
recruitment policy. All posts that involve working with 
children or vulnerable adults are required to have a DBS 
check. Contractual requirements with 1610 have not been 
sufficiently evidenced.

A G

C7. There are effective inter-agency 
working arrangements that safeguard & 
promote the welfare of children

Staff involved in front line activities with vulnerable people, 
such as housing staff, regularly liaise and work with other 
agencies including charities, the police and other local 
authorities.

G G

C8. There is effective information sharing 
practice within the Authority and with other 
agencies involved in safeguarding and 
promoting the welfare of children.

The Authority is not a front line Child Services Authority. 
That said, formal training has been used to ensure more 
staff are aware of safeguarding responsibilities. An 
information sharing protocol has yet to be developed.

A A

C9. The Local Safeguarding Children 
Board and Local Safeguarding Adults 
Board are effectively helping the Authority 
to develop their safeguarding 
arrangements

Prior arrangements such as the self assessment toolkit 
and survey, run by the DCSB, have been suspended and 
there are no firm plans on how the board will assist 
Districts going forward.

A A

Page 43



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Section 106 (Follow-up Audit) – Satisfactory (7/9 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (Feb 2015) – Marginal/Satisfactory (6/9 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows a Local Planning Authority to enter into a legally 
binding agreement or planning obligation with a landowner in association with the granting of planning 
permission. The obligation is termed a Section 106 Agreement.        

The agreements are a way of delivering or addressing matters that are necessary to make a development 
acceptable in planning terms and are increasingly used to support the provision of services and infrastructure, 
such as highways, recreational facilities, education, health and affordable housing.

When the Council receives a planning application, the Planning team will determine, in consultation with other 
internal/external experts (e.g. Housing, Highways, etc), whether a planning obligation may be relevant to that 
application. In such cases an instruction will be passed to Legal Services to prepare a 106 Agreement. Legal 
Services will then take part in the planning negotiations.   

Once a Section 106 Agreement is in place and the development is under way, the Development Enabling 
Manager is responsible for ensuring that trigger points are identified, monies are collected, and compliance with 
the Section 106 Agreement occurs. He is also responsible for ensuring that the monies received are allocated in 
accordance with the original planning decision.

Previous Audit Opinion
Areas of control ranged from good through to unsatisfactory. Improvements are needed in key areas such as 
monitoring and record keeping before the system can be considered to be operating well.

Opinion
There have been a number of improvements to the systems and processes used to record and monitor Section 
106 agreements since the previous audit, however further work remains necessary to ensure the system is 
robust and transparent.

Management Response

Planning Manager - It is pleasing to see the comment that the “improvements made, and additional resources 
allocated to the monitoring and management of S106 agreements, have had a marked effect on the level of 
assurance that can be placed on the system.” This to my mind is the most important result from this process and 
gives the Authority confidence that the measures already in place are ensuring that  the process in place is 
robust. There is obviously still work to do to get all parties to update their records in a manner that enables 
easier monitoring. Therefore, getting one definitive recording system (which should be IDOX) must be the clear 
key focus for all involved to eliminate risk of duplicated incomplete records.

Senior Solicitor - As discussed during the course of the audit, it is acknowledged that historic records are 
incomplete; however it is a considerable task to manually retrieve each s106 agreement from storage and 
transfer the details onto the spreadsheet. Wherever possible, deeds of variation and discharge are linked to the 
earlier deed, but this isn’t always possible if the earlier record is incomplete. A good compromise is to populate 
records in relation to agreements over recent years, up to a point where the obligations contained within them 
are still enforceable. I understand the Affordable Housing Officer has agreed to assist with this task, which will 
make records more complete and reliable. 

Regarding the use of IDOX, the spreadsheet will need to be retained going forward as it is still relied upon by the 
legal and finance teams, however the trigger points will now be exclusively recorded on IDOX instead. A date 
column has been added to the spreadsheet showing when each agreement is completed. Lastly, I understand 
that visits to sites by the Building Control Team are not a substitute to the planning officer’s attendance in 
relation to most planning matters. Building control officers do occasionally advise their planning colleagues if 
they have observed, for example, that development has commenced on site, which then allows the planning 
officer to make further contact with the developer to discuss compliance with s106 obligations. 

See following page for control table: Page 44



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

SECTION 106 (Follow Up) - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 2015

M
ar 2015

N
ov 2016

C1. Section 106 Agreements are prepared 
in accordance with the organisation’s 
approved policies, standing orders and 
financial regulations; Key employees are 
appropriately qualified; Officers and 
contracted third parties operate in 
accordance with Government legislation.

Agreements are drawn up using a range of model 
documents published on the Authority’s website. The 
Senior Solicitor and Planning Manager ensure that 
agreements are in accordance with approved policies and 
procedures. Senior officers are suitably qualified and have 
the necessary experience to fulfil this role.

G G G

C2. All completed Section 106 Agreements 
are signed and sealed by the Council’s 
Solicitor (or in his absence the Head of Paid 
Service) and details are recorded 
accurately in the Seals Register.

All agreements reviewed during the audit had been signed 
by the Authority’s Solicitor and bore the official seal. An 
entry had been duly made in the sealed envelope register 
along with a brief description of the deed.

G G G

C3. Detailed negotiations are undertaken 
when the Section 106 Agreement is being 
prepared by a designated Section 106 
Officer, and Agreements are worded to 
provide maximum protection to the Council 
(using standard base documents where 
possible) by having strong clauses relating 
to all developer commitments. 

Section 106 agreements are drafted with consideration 
given to the ODPM 2005/05 criteria to ensure they are fair 
and proportionate. Covenants were found to be worded 
clearly and amounts, trigger points, calculation formulae 
(where applicable) and intended usage for contributions 
had been clearly established.

G G G

C4. Officers respond to trigger points in 106 
Agreements, undertake physical 
inspections of development sites either 
prior to the commencement of the 
development or prior to occupation of that 
development, and initiate collection 
procedures following physical inspections. 

There is no comprehensive database of S106 agreement 
covenants and trigger points that would enable effective 
monitoring to take place. A partially developed database 
exists, however, reliance is currently placed on ad hoc 
processes to identify when trigger points have been 
reached and action is required. No record of S106 trigger 
point inspections is retained.

R R A

C5. Section 106 Officer monitors 
expenditure of funds and triggers payments 
in a timely manner.

Records indicate S106 funds held are allocated to 
appropriate projects but there are some sums which have 
been held for significant periods for which no firm spending 
plans were apparent (see page 7 for details)

A A G

C6. Central spreadsheet is updated to 
record details of the 106 Agreement with 
the associated monies owed, funds held, 
monies paid out, for that agreement

Key sections of the central spreadsheet record were not 
being maintained. The most recent S106 agreement 
recorded was over twelve months old. Data quality issues 
were noted when comparing related entries.

R R A

C7. Accountancy Services monitor the 
financial terms of Section 106 Agreements 
and ensure that all financial amounts are 
posted to the appropriate accounts

The Accountancy Section up date financial aspects of the 
central spreadsheet and ledger using information provided 
by planning and legal services. An example was identified 
where income had not been recorded against the correct 
deed reference and ledger job code which could have lead 
to an inappropriate use of funds.

A G G

C8. Regular reconciliation takes place of all 
monies associated with Section 106 
Agreements

The Accountancy section conducts a monthly reconciliation 
(in months where account activity has occurred) of S106 
ledger accounts to the supporting spreadsheet record 
which shows balances and movements. No variances exist.

G G G

C9. Files in Planning and Legal Services 
are stored securely and access is restricted 
to key Officers. System access is secure 
and electronic data is regularly backed up.

Both paper based and electronic records are protected 
from loss and unauthorised access. Electronic data is 
regularly backed up and stored offsite. Improvements to the 
logging system for documents removed from storage, is 
advised.

A G G

Page 45



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Travel & Subsistence – Good (7/8 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (March 2012) – Good (9/9 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The current Travel & Subsistence procedure commenced in April 2011 and combines several previous 
processes for repaying employees for expenses and mileage incurred on Authority business. All claims are 
paid though the Payroll system to ensure that all payments made to employees are properly recorded and 
processed and included in the P11D tax forms at year end. 

Financial procedures for the Council clearly state that in the course of their duties officers and Members 
may be required to work away from their normal place of work, attend seminars, training days, etc. The 
officer/member should be reimbursed for their travel and associated costs at agreed rates and in 
accordance with agreed procedures. In so doing the officer receives what is due to them and the Council 
has an acceptable record of what is claimed and by whom.

All claims for payment of car allowances, mileage, subsistence allowances, travelling and incidental 
expenses, including training mileage and subsistence shall be submitted, duly certified on a form supplied 
by the Statutory Finance Officer. Claims should be made each month and forwarded to the Exchequer 
office by the 7th day of the following month for reimbursement. All claims will in normal circumstances be 
made through salaries and wages.
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that five of the eight controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to published information and ensuring submission of timely claims supported by fuel 
receipts in all instances. 

Management Response

Finance Manager - Officers from both Democratic services and payroll will periodically remind councillors 
and employees respectively that they should attach fuel receipts in support of mileage claims. 

Given that current compliance by officers and members generates fuel receipts in excess of the VAT 
currently reclaimed from HMRC, the risk to the Council is considered low. 

The requirement for the Section 151 to counter sign late claim submission is considered an adequate 
control. The requirement for managers to view and validate car insurance for business use is noted.

See following page for control table:

Page 46



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

TRAVEL & SUBSITENCE - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

N
ov 2016

D
ec 2016

C1. Controls ensure that all claims are in 
line with HMRC regulations and the 
authorities requirements.

Payments are in line with HMRC approved rates. Payroll 
staff monitor total mileage although no claimants have 
exceeded the 10k threshold.

G G

C2. Receipts are required for all 
transactions to prove appropriate 
expenditure.

Fuel receipts were often found to be absent. Receipts for 
subsistence and parking expenses were held 
appropriately.

A G

C3. Expenses claimed for official duties 
can be verified as a bona fide claim 
through the records kept and undertaken.

Sufficient records are retained to support payments made. 
Separation of duties ensures that all claims are authorised 
before processing and subject to reasonableness checks 
by the payroll team during processing.

G G

C4. Recipients of car allowances have 
annually, on request, provided to the 
Statutory
Finance Officer such policies and/or 
premium receipts as may be necessary to 
ensure adequate cover against any liability 
to the Council arising out of official use.

The standard appraisal process includes vehicle checks 
to be carried out by the line manager. In several instances 
we found no checks, or partial checks only had been 
carried out.

We also noted the standard form suggests using the 
online database for insurance checks, which is not 
sufficient for determining whether business use is 
included.

A A

C5. Procedures ensure that the Financial 
Information System is updated with all 
Travel & Subsistence payments.

All claim data is entered into the financial systems and 
posted to the general ledger using relevant accounting 
codes.

G G

C6. Claims are required to be complete at 
the time the expenditure is incurred.

Officer claims for mileage were found to contain all 
necessary information including dates of travel and 
odometer readings.

G G

C7. There is a clear process for the timely 
acceptance of claims, with all processing 
being undertaken within pre agreed 
timetables.

The small payroll team are effective at processing and 
paying claims within pre set timescales. G G

C8. Procedures ensure that data is 
appropriately protected from loss, damage 
or unauthorised access.

Manual records and digital records are held securely and 
protected from loss and unauthorised access by way of 
regular backups and user access controls.

G G

Page 47



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Culture & Ethics – Good (3/4 risks were mitigated at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (March 2015) – Good (4/4 risks were mitigated at the time of publishing)

Background

The Institute of Internal Auditors’ practice guide on Ethics states that ‘A strong ethical culture is the 
foundation of good governance. An ethical culture is created through a robust ethics programme that sets 
expectations for acceptable behaviours in conducting business within the organisation and with external 
parties. It includes effective board oversight, strong tone-at-the-top, senior management involvement, 
organization wide commitment, a customized code of conduct, timely follow-up and investigation of 
reported incidents, consistent disciplinary action for offenders, ethics training, communications, ongoing 
monitoring systems, and an anonymous incident reporting system’.

The aim of this audit was to assess the state of the Authority's ethical climate and the effectiveness of its 
strategies, tactics, communications and other processes in achieving the desired level of legal and ethical 
compliance. 

This is a wide ranging topic which, in view of time constraints, concentrated on:
  

 A review of the governance arrangements on the basis of the responsibilities of the Members, the 
Strategic Management Team and Operational Management. 

 A stock - take of the Authority's policies and procedures which define the culture and how this is 
applied in practice.

 Formulating views on how Members and management communicate the expected culture / ethics of 
the organisation to staff and how this relates to the carrying out their responsibilities and duties in 
their daily work.

 How Members and officers communicate the culture / ethics to customers / the public and how this 
public perception is measured.

    
Opinion 

The audit has found that three of the four risks assessed had been mitigated effectively.  Risks associated 
with the policy and procedure framework can be addressed by ensuring all policies are reviewed and 
updated within the agreed timescales. 

Management Response

Senior Solicitor - This audit has provided useful reassurance that the Council is on the right track in terms 
of culture and ethics. I was pleased to read the positive findings, and look forward to using the report as the 
basis for further improvement. 

See following page for control table:

Page 48



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

CULTURE & ETHICS - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

Risk Areas SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

N
ov 2016

D
ec 2016

R1 Review of the governance 
arrangements on the basis of the 
responsibilities of the Members, the 
Strategic Management Team and 
Operational Management. 

The Constitution has recently been updated and the 
amendments were approved by Full Council on 
01/08/2016. This includes a code of conduct for 
members and the current senior management structure. 
The Constitution, along with other key framework 
documents, establishes the cultural and ethical 
framework for the Authority to conduct its business 
activities.

G G

R2 A stock - take of the Authority's policies 
and procedures which define the culture 
and how this is applied in practice.

The Authority has a range of policies and procedures in 
place which help to establish the culture of the 
organisation and ensure that ethical standards are 
applied and where necessary enforced. A number of 
policies are now overdue for review, which could lead to 
them containing inaccurate or unreliable information 
and may not be seen as authoritative or reliable by staff 
that refer to them.

A A

R3 Consider how Members and 
management communicate the expected 
culture / ethics of the organisation to staff 
and how this relates to the carrying out 
their responsibilities and duties in their 
daily work.

The Authority engages with members and staff in a 
variety of ways that help establish cultural values and 
ethical behaviour. These include policies and 
procedures, induction and training, newsletters and 
periodic surveys. Senior Management demonstrated 
that they value an open door policy and seek to work 
together with each other and staff towards common 
goals.

G G

R4 Consider how Members and officers 
communicate the culture / ethics to 
customers / the public and how this public 
perception is measured.

The Authority uses its website, which has been recently 
revamped, to communicate with customers and the 
wider public. Examples of an open and transparent 
culture were evident from the website, such as the gifts 
and hospitality register for members and staff, minutes 
and reports from council meetings, the constitution 
which includes codes of conduct for members and 
officers and publication of all expenditure over £500. 
Public consultation exercises are also used to gauge 
opinion and allow the public a voice prior to decision 
making on major projects and initiatives. A compliments 
and complaints process is in place and was working 
well. Press releases are used to respond to matters of 
public interest.

G G

Page 49



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Panning Enforcement – Marginal/Satisfactory (7/12 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

No Previous Audit

Background

Planning Enforcement is an important part of the planning process and whilst it is not always a criminal 
offence to carry out development without planning permission, it may still constitute a contravention of 
planning laws and the Council has the power to enforce those laws. Whether Enforcement Action is taken 
depends on whether the Council considers the work done is unacceptable, harmful or is not in the public 
interest.

Planning Enforcement is a very complex area because the Town and Country Planning Acts seek to strike 
a balance between the freedom of the owners to use or alter their property as they wish, whilst at the same 
time safeguarding the amenities of their neighbours, conserving historic buildings and protecting the natural 
environment of areas.

The Planning Enforcement Team is located within the Planning Department at Riverbank and consists of a 
Team Leader and two Planning Enforcement officers. 

The Planning Enforcement Team carry out their duties in accordance with the Local Enforcement Plan 
which sets out the Council’s priorities for investigation, explains what will be investigated and what will not, 
and outlines the Council’s general discretionary powers with regard to Planning Enforcement. The plan sets 
out the priorities for responses to complaints and clarifies the timescales for response by Enforcement 
Officers. To make the most effective use of resources, allegations about suspected breaches of planning 
control will be investigated thoroughly and accurately with a priority rating of ‘High’, ‘Medium’ or ‘Low’ 
depending on the nature of the breach and the degree of harm caused.
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that 7 of the 12 controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be made 
with regard to evidence handling, managing potential conflicts of interest, ensuring targets for site visits are 
met and improving the completeness and accuracy of database information. 

Management Response

Planning Manager - It is pleasing to see that the number of older cases have reduced, and that the Team 
Leader role and work already completed through the review of the enforcement system has improved the 
service. However it is disappointing to see that there are still accuracy issues when inputting data on IDOX. 
It is vitally important that information on cases is entered consistently so that other members of the 
planning team are able to access it in order to assist the enforcement team and our customers. Monitoring 
actions are suggested to address this and if necessary further training on IDOX will be arranged. 

See following page for control table:

Page 50



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

O
ct 2016

N
ov 2016

C1. Planning Officers are fully aware of 
legislative requirements and local policies and 
are properly qualified 

The Officers demonstrated a good working knowledge of 
relevant legislation and have access to necessary reference 
material. Planning qualifications are not necessary as the role 
relies more on investigative skills.

G G

C2. Council delegated authority and local 
planning enforcement policies set out the 
process by which all planning enforcement 
complaints will be investigated  

The Council’s Constitution contains detailed delegations for 
relevant committees and senior officers. Enforcement notices 
had been approved in accordance with the delegations. A 
Local Enforcement Plan is in place and up to date.

G G

C3. Planning enforcement complaints are 
received through appropriate channels.

There are several methods that a complaint can be 
submitted and these are publicised on the website (within the 
Local Enforcement Plan). The website also includes an 
online form that can be used. 

G G

C4. Planning enforcement complaints are 
registered and formally acknowledged.

Complaints are channelled through Planning Support who 
carry out ‘validation’ exercises and assign priority. Formal 
acknowledgement letters should be issued but there was 
often no record of this occurring.

A A

C5. Planning enforcement complaints are 
assessed initially for planning breaches prior to 
being registered for investigation.

Background information searches and relevant planning 
regulations are considered in all cases before action is taken, 
although these are not formally recorded so reliance is 
placed on verbal assurance received.

G G

C6. Planning enforcement complaints are 
categorised, risk prioritised and investigations 
are carried out in accordance with policy, 
procedure and best practice

In accordance with the Local Enforcement Plan, complaints 
are prioritised high, medium low. Targets for visits had not 
always been achieved and the storage/retention of evidence 
could be improved.

A A

C7. Failures to comply with planning 
enforcement notices are identified and 
prosecutions secured.

There is a regular review of open cases and prosecutions, 
whilst rare, do occur if enforcement notices are not complied 
with.

G G

C8. Planning enforcement records provide 
complete and accurate representations of the 
events occurring which have influenced the 
decision making process; for example site 
visits, meetings.

The IDOX system is the principal means of recording 
casework, although network servers are used to store 
photographs. Case notes were not always sufficient to 
provide clear chronology and data quality issues were 
identified in a number of cases.

A A

C9. A planning enforcement register is 
maintained and made available to the public.

A register is in place and was up to date, although minor 
omissions were noted. The register is a heavy bound volume 
and as such is not available via the website. Neither is it 
protected from loss by fire.

A A

C10. Management information is utilised to 
develop the service

Performance monitoring is carried out periodically and there 
are regular team and one to one meetings that help 
management develop the service. Performance indicators 
should be developed.

A A

C11. Planning fee policy sets out the charges 
to be made in relation to planning 
enforcement.

Two fees relating to planning enforcement are included in the 
fees and charges document approved by the C&R 
Committee.

G G

C12. Receipts are issued for all payments 
received and banking activities are in 
accordance with Council policy.

There is very limited income in respect of planning 
enforcement however numbered receipts are used when 
appropriate.

G G

Page 51



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Main Accounting – Good (10/10 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (Feb 2016) – Good (10/10 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The Main Accounting System provides the backbone of the Council’s accounting processes. It comprises a 
series of accounting codes organised into a structure that enables the Authorities budget and relevant 
transactional information from the feeder systems to be recorded. The feeder systems include Accounts 
Payable (creditors), Accounts Receivable (debtors), Payroll and Cash Receipting.

The main aims and objectives of the Accountancy Team are to manage the Authority’s central accounting 
records; ensure sound budget setting; monitor income and expenditure, and produce the year end 
accounts, ensuring the accuracy and completeness of records that reflect the true and fair representation 
of the Authority’s transactions.
    
Opinion 

Overall we found the controls to be working effectively and therefore mitigating the associated risks. We 
found the appropriate records to be well maintained and readily available. We note that there is an increase 
in electronic documentation rather than paper based records which we consider positive.

Management Response

Finance Manager - The findings of the report are noted, and the team will endeavour to maintain the 
standards alluded to in the report.
 

See following pages for control table:

Page 52



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

MAIN ACCOUNTING - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Test

Publish

C1 - Controls have been established to 
ensure that transactions are correctly 
posted to the appropriate accounts and 
input through the feeder systems are 
subject to approval.

We completed a walkthrough of one transaction from the 
finance system (Cedar) for each source or element of the 
system (Debtors, Creditors, Payroll and Cash Receipting) 
We found that the details agree, input is appropriately 
authorised and the transactions were posted correctly. We 
also reviewed the reconciliations completed regarding these 
feeder systems/elements. Source systems have been found 
to accurately post transactions to the general ledger.

G G

C2a - Closing balances are verified for 
accuracy when brought forward

The closing balances from 2015/16 were found to be 
brought forward accurately as opening balances in 2016/17 
accounts.

G G

C2b - Ledger balances to zero (trial 
balance is zero)

A trial balance is run monthly ensuring that the system 
balances to zero and is working as expected. No 
discrepancies were identified.

G G

C3a - An annual budget cycle is 
established to ensure that budgets are 
promptly prepared

A budget has been set by Full Council and was formally 
approved by members on 22/02/2016. The Budget covers 
all areas of Income and Expenditure and includes capital 
expenditure.

G G

0C3b - The budget & any subsequent 
alterations are referred to and approved by 
the managing body.

The only amendments to budgets (other than budget 
virements) are Transfers from Reserves which were also 
found to be approved by the Authority.

G G

C3c - Controls ensure that the budgets 
recorded on the FIS are accurate and bona 
fide

The budget is prepared using a series of spreadsheets. The 
spreadsheets are used to prepare the budget that goes to 
Members for approval and are also used to upload the 
budget to Cedar (Finance System/Ledger). Checks are 
completed by the Accountancy Team to ensure the budget 
upload is accurate. We can confirm that the approved 
budget was uploaded accurately to the authorities finance 
system Cedar.

Changes to the budget can only be made via Virements. 
Virements have been found to be adequately controlled as 
they can only be completed by the Accountancy Team and 
appropriate authorisation is required.

There are adequate controls in place to ensure only 
authorised changes to the budget are made.

G G

C3d - Responsibilities for budgetary control 
been clearly defined

Budget monitoring is led by the Accountancy Team. Each 
budget is assigned to a budget holder. Members are also 
provided with effective budget monitoring information.

G G

C3e - Budget virements are properly 
authorised

A virement control sheet is in place to record all virements 
processed. For each virement listed on the control sheet a 
Virement form has been completed and had been 
authorised appropriately as per the Financial Procedure 
Rules.

G G

C3f - Budgets are monitored and reported 
upon, overspends are investigated and 
managed.

A Quarterly Business Report is produced and reported to 
Members and published on the Authorities website. 
Variances are identified and explanations provided.

There is also a reserve control sheet to monitor the position 
of reserves.

G G

Page 53



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Each budget has a budget holder set up in Cedar (the 
finance system). These officers can access their 
budget/spend information.

C4a - All accounting items are correctly 
routed through the coding structure to the 
appropriate head.

G G

C4b - Controls on feeder systems ensure 
that debit and credit transactions posted 
during the year to the FIS net to zero

G G

C4c - There are regular reconciliations with 
feeder systems to ensure that the FIS is 
correct

The Accountancy Team hold a spreadsheet called “Monthly 
Rec sign off sheet” which records who has completed each 
reconciliation each month. This records what reconciliations 
have been done and by who and differences identified. 

We reviewed reconciliations of four control accounts; 

 Accounts payable control account, 
 Accounts Receivable control account, 
 Net Pay Control Account control account  (the 

reconciliations cover all payroll related accounts not 
just the Net Pay i.e. SMP, SSP, Pensions, NI etc,

 Cash Receipting Control Account.

Control accounts are reviewed regularly with balances 
being identified, reported and corrective action taken where 
necessary.

G G

C5a - Journals & internal transactions are 
monitored for accuracy to ensure posting 
errors are identified

The vast majority of postings to the general ledger are 
automated, coming from the various feeder systems. For 
these postings the account codes are predetermined by the 
feeder system being used and once set up will remain fixed 
until changed by a system administrator

It is possible for transactions to be entered into the system 
with an invalid code but in these instances the transaction 
would be posted to a suspense account and subsequently 
cleared.

There are only a handful of manual journals that are 
processed through the year and these tend to be for fairly 
low value transactions. During the previous audit it was 
reported that there was no established routine/system in 
place for the specific identification and review of high value 
manual journals. We can now confirm that that there is a 
process in place to review Journal Transfers thus reducing 
the risk of incorrect Journal transfers going undetected.

Journal Transfers can only be completed by the 
Accountancy Team.

Budget monitoring is another process whereby errors in 
posting may be identified, for instance if income levels were 
below that anticipated for the period.

G G

C5b - Records of journals and internal 
transfers are uniquely numbered, include 
sufficient details of the transaction and 
must be authorized

We reviewed a sample of Journal Transfers and these have 
been found to be completed appropriately and accurately 
with adequate authorisation with adequate supporting 
documentation. 

It is positive to note that the Accountancy Team are better 
utilising the functionality of the Cedar system by attaching 
electronic copies of supporting documentation to the 
transactions in the system.

G G

Page 54



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

C6a - Controls ensure that unidentified and 
miscoded items within each feeder system 
are posted to suspense accounts

G G

C6b - Suspense accounts are regularly 
reviewed and cleared

The general Ledger has four active suspense codes. These 
are monitored periodically by the accountancy team and 
any amounts posted to them investigated and corrected. 
They are included on the Monthly Reconciliation Checklist.

These are;

a, Accounts Receivable Suspense – 0335 – Balance Zero 
at time of audit  – Balance was also zero as at 30/11/2016 
when last reconciliation completed.

b, Sub ledger Suspense – 0337 - (used to offset payments 
to creditors that are also a debtor. Therefore should always 
balance to zero. Balance zero at time of audit -  Balance 
was also zero as at 30/11/2016

c, RADIUS suspense – 0397 - This suspense code would 
include all types of income including council tax 
/NNDR/Debtors i.e. Income Account Suspense.

This is reconciled periodically by the Accountancy Team. 
The RADIUS Suspense was reconciled in September and 
October 2016. Novembers will be completed during 
December. Note that the suspense balance at 31/10/2016 
was zero.

The officer working in Cashiers maintains a control sheet 
where income posted to suspense is recorded and updated 
when cleared. This is provided to the Accountancy team to 
assist and support the periodic reconciliations.

d, Payroll suspense – 0533 – This suspense account is 
reviewed as part of the Payroll Control Account 
reconciliation completed by the Accountancy Team. 
Balance zero at the time of the audit.

G G

C7- Bank reconciliations are completed 
promptly and reviewed by a senior officer 
on a regular basis

Bank Reconciliations are completed by a designated 
Officer. This officer is not involved with processing 
monetary transactions e.g. payments. We have reviewed 
bank reconciliation files and can confirm that the bank 
reconciliations are completed monthly and there is 
adequate supporting documentation and each reconciliation 
is reviewed by a senior officer.

G G

C8a- The fixed asset register is reconciled 
to the FIS as part of the year-end 
closedown procedure.

In agreement with the client this area was not reviewed as 
External Audit review this area in detail. Therefore no value 
can be added by us at this time. Also note that the fixed 
asset register is reconciled annually as part of the year end 
close-down procedure.

 - -

C8b - Closedown procedures have been 
established and work allocated to ensure 
deadlines are met

At the time of the audit a draft closedown timetable for 
2016-17 has been produced. The “Managers Year end 
schedule” has been developed with covering memo in 
preparation. The 2015/16 closedown timetable was 
reviewed and discussed with no issues being identified.

G G

C8c - Year-end cut off procedures in FIS & 
the feeder systems ensure balances & 
assets are reported accurately; income & 
expenditure relate to the correct financial 
year.

There is an effective system in place to identify and process 
accruals and prepayments. 

The parameters for the financial year 2016-17 have been 
set up correctly in the Cedar system allowing the system to 
account for transactions from all feeder systems in the 
correct financial year.

G G

Page 55



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

C9a - User’s access rights are established, 
amended and removed when duties are 
changed or officers leave the Authority.

G G

C9b - Users’ access rights and 
permissions reviewed on a regular basis 
(e.g. annually) in order to ensure they are 
still appropriate and maintain adequate 
separation of duty

G G

C9c - Access to update parameter data is 
restricted to employees independent of the 
general data input and output processing 
stages

General Main Accounting System Access - Only the 
Accountancy team have access to make changes to the 
MAS but other officers have access to query and 
interrogate. 

All other CedAr applications - Applications such as AP and 
AR are restricted to appropriate officers

Deletion / creation of accounting codes / cost centres - 
Accounting codes/cost centres can only be created, 
amended or deleted by the system administrators (*3) or by 
officers in the Accountancy Team.

Access to Journal processing - Journals can only be 
processed by the Accountancy Team.

Parameter data (e.g. accounting periods, financial year 
start/ end). Such parameters can only be changed by the 
System Administrators.

Period / year end close down - Such parameters can only 
be changed by the System Administrators.

We reviewed a sample of system users and found them all 
to be current employees and have appropriate levels of 
access. Note that the system administrators sit with the 
Payroll Officer aiding the communication of changes of 
personnel requiring changes to the access rights of system 
users.

G G

C10a - Procedures are in compliance with 
the IFRS requirements

Each year a Senior Officer attends a course to provide 
updates to accounting policies and requirements for the 
final accounts. A copy of the 16/17 COP and accompanying 
guidance notes (which is a much larger document) has 
been obtained and is held in the Accountancy Section. The 
Authority has taken adequate steps to ensure compliance 
with the IFRS requirements.

G G

C10b - Policies & Procedures are 
established, documented and understood 
by officers

There are up to date policy and procedure 
notes/documents in place on the network and available to 
appropriate members of staff.

G G

Page 56



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

NNDR – Good (8/9 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (January 2016) – Good (8/9 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The Council is responsible for the billing and collection of business rates from more than 3,600 business 
premises across the district, with a rateable value in excess of £33m. Business rates are the way that 
those who occupy non-domestic property contribute towards the cost of local services. Under the 
business rates retention arrangements introduced from 1 April 2013, Councils keep a proportion of the 
business rates paid locally. This provides a direct financial incentive for Councils to work with local 
businesses to create a favourable local environment for growth since local authorities will benefit from 
growth in business rates revenues.

The main aim and objectives of the Council’s service is to bill the right person at the right property at the 
right time. A further aim is to take correct action to maximise recovery of NDR.

The previous audit of the NDR system was conducted in December 2015 and was in respect of the 
2015/2016 financial year. The audit opinion from that audit was ‘good’. A good opinion is defined as 
‘minimal risk identified; a few minor recommendations’. 
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that eight of the nine controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to ensuring write offs are authorised in accordance with the scheme of delegation. 

Management Response

Customer Support Manager - Another successful audit which is testament to well established and 
efficient processes that are closely monitored and managed.

See following page for control table:

Page 57



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

NNDR - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

D
ec 2016

Jan 2017

C1. All new commercial properties and 
changes to commercial properties are 
identified and referred to the NNDR team to 
keep their records up to date.

A variety of methods are in place to identify new or 
amended properties and refer them to the NNDR 
team. This includes office based investigations, 
monitoring of planning applications and building 
control notices.

G G

C2. The NNDR database is updated fully 
and accurately to the valuation list.

Weekly changes to the rating list as notified by the 
VOA were promptly input to the Authority’s NNDR 
system. The total number of properties and their 
rateable value as reported by the VOA is also 
balanced to the Authority’s database weekly.

G G

C3. Academy is updated with new standing 
data (poundage, SBRR, transitional relief, 
charitable relief, rural settlement relief, 
interest rates on overpayments, deferral 
calculations) in a timely and accurate 
manner

System parameters are updated promptly via new 
software releases or manually by the Systems Admin 
team. A print out of changes is produced and 
independently checked.

G G

C4. Monthly monitoring of additions and 
deletions of properties and renewables, and 
reliefs granted, against the NNDR1 
estimate, to provide an estimate of changes 
to expected income due from the business 
rate retention scheme. Estimated changes 
are reported to senior management 

The latest NNDR1 estimate and NNDR3 outturn had 
been completed and authorised by the due date.

In year monitoring of the figures used within the 
estimate is carried out by the Accountancy team and 
is available to the Finance Manager and S151 Officer.

G G

C5. Correct and timely calculation of NNDR 
liability and correct application of rate reliefs

Calculations for base liability and liability net of reliefs 
had been calculated correctly for the sample 
reviewed.

G G

C6. Accounts with overpayments and credit 
balances are regularly reviewed; refunds 
are made in accordance with policies and 
Financial Procedures Rules

Credit balances had been identified and refunded 
promptly. The process includes separation of duties. A 
transparent record of all refunds is maintained.

G G

C7. Arrears are pursued in accordance with 
correct procedures (Policies & Financial 
procedures) and recovery processes are 
operating effectively

A recovery timetable had been drawn up prior to the 
start of the financial year and followed. Recovery 
procedures were in place and published.

G G

C8. Write-offs are made in accordance with 
correct procedures (Policies & Financial 
procedures)

Write offs had been authorised and evidence retained, 
however some instances were not submitted to the 
appropriate level for authorisation.

A A

C9. The Academy NNDR system is 
reconciled to Cash Receipting (Capita), and 
the General Ledger

Daily and monthly balancing exercises have taken 
place and no unknown variances are ongoing.

G G

Page 58



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Insurance – Good (8/9 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (Dec 2013) – Good (11/13 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The insurance service is administered as part of Accountancy Services. The aims of the service are to:

• Comply with legislative requirements.
• Ensure that the Council’s insurance policies give adequate cover at competitive rates.
• Log and process any incidents or claims effectively, in accordance with set timescales.  
• Correctly account for any associated income and expenditure.
• Ensure that any identified risks are considered for relevant insurance cover if appropriate.
• Wherever possible, ensure that a robust defence is provided against any claims received and that 

the Authority takes steps to minimise the risks of subsequent similar claims.

The Authority uses the services of a broker AON; the insurance providers are Travellers Insurance 
Company (Property, Motor etc.) and Zurich Municipal (Computer, Liability etc.). The insurance premiums 
for 2016/17 are in the region of £213k (excl. IPT). In August 2014 the insurance contracts were let for a 
three year period, with the option to extend for a further two years.  
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that eight of the nine controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to benchmarking with comparative authorities and risk management.

Management Response

Finance Manager - With regards to benchmarking it has been agreed that the Insurance Officer will raise 
the subject of collating simple benchmarking data at the next West of England Insurance Group (likely to be 
April 2017).  

In order to improve the communication channels between Risk Management & Insurance, the insurance 
officer will now attend the Risk Management Group

The Accountancy Team recognises the need to formalise procedure notes within the team pertaining to the 
administration of the insurance claims.

See following page for control table:

Page 59



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

INSURANCE - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

N
ov 16

Jan 17

C1. Active benchmarking and 
review of service delivery is in 
place.

At the time of our limited benchmarking was taking place. Currently, the 
small number of claims being processed does not justify extensive (and 
therefore costly) benchmarking activities.  However, there should be 
value in the early identification of new risks / trends in insurance claims 
and insurable risks being incurred by other (like) organisations, enabling 
Torridge officers to consider the risk posed to Torridge and mitigating 
action that may be required.  Such  mitigating action may be through 
revised insurance arrangements, but are just, if not more, as likely to 
require action by service managers in considering and revising delivery 
arrangements. We consider that, going forward, there is benefit in 
obtaining comparative data from other similar size local authorities in the 
area, and that, where appropriate, this data should feed into the wider 
risk management arrangements of the council to ensure corporate 
opportunities to mitigate new or emerging risks are fully captured.

A A

C2. Active performance 
monitoring is in place.

At the time of the audit limited performance monitoring was taking place. 
However, the number of claims received by Torridge is historically low, 
and the benefits that would be obtained from wider performance 
monitoring are likely to be outweighed by cost of data collection.

G G

C3 Contingency plan (for 
service delivery)  is in place

There are adequate arrangements in place that provide adequate staff 
cover (in times of absence). We are content that staff within the team 
have adequate knowledge of the function to enable the process to 
continue in times of absence. However, there may be some benefit in 
producing basic process notes that could be added to, over time, to 
provide guidance. 

G G

C4. Robust risk management 
processes are in place and 
inform the insurance 
arrangements

The Council does have effective Risk Management arrangements, but 
there is no clear link that ensures “insurable risks” are suitably noted to 
officers dealing with insurance matter. We appreciate that, in a smaller 
authority such as Torridge, good communication channels ensure that 
this takes place, but better formal links between Risk Management and 
insurance should be considered. Such arrangement would also help to 
ensure good "two-way" communication on risks and insurance related 
matters.

A G

C5. Active fraud prevention work 
takes place

We are satisfied that suitable arrangements are in place to prevent, 
detect and deter fraudulent insurance claims and activity.

G G

C6. Claims are managed and 
monitored

Claims are suitably managed and monitored. Further development of 
knowledge for the Accountant (Gemma Cawsey) may help to provide 
further capacity to deal with claims. 

G G

C7. Sufficient insurance policies / 
funds are in place to cover the 
financial impact of successful 
claims

The Council use AON to provide guidance on the level and breadth of 
insurance cover required.  In 2014 and insurance tender process took 
place, and insurance arrangements were selected to cover a three year 
(plus two) contract period. During this process the Council did request 
insurance quotes for Cyber liability, but no quotes were provided. As a 
consequence no cover is available in this area.

G G

C8. Robust system security / 
access controls are in place 
(physical and logical)

No “insurance system” is in place. Insurance data is held on Torridge 
systems, generally using Microsoft files. Security. Access to claim data 
is restricted to Accountancy staff, which we consider to be suitable for 
current needs, and provides for a suitable level of security around data.

G G

C9. Secure storage exists for 
manual records

Current processes result in all data being stored electronically. Paper 
documentation that is received will be scanned, saved and securely 
disposed of (once checked for accurate scanning).
Former paper records (e.g. insurance certificates) are held in the safe. 
Torridge staff are currently scanning and saving such documents to the 
network to provide more resilience. 

G G

Page 60



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Creditors – Satisfactory/Good (9/11 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (Dec 2015) – Good (11/11 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

Accounts Payable is the primary system used by the Authority to pay its creditors. It comprises a database 
of those people and organisations that are owed money by the Authority and includes details of what has 
been and is due to be paid. It links to the eProcurement system whereby electronic orders raised by 
officers are recorded. The two systems operate to record orders and payments and they link to the General 
Ledger through the accounts coding structure and are classified as commitments and payments.    

The main objective of the service is to pay the right creditor the right amount at the right time. 

The previous audit of the Accounts Payable system was completed in December 2015 and covered the 
2015/16 financial year.  

The 2016/2017 audit derives from the annual audit plan of the Internal Audit Service and a requirement to 
audit key systems on an annual basis. 
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that 9 of the 11 controls tested were working effectively.  Improvements could be made 
regarding VAT classification and ensuring VAT registration numbers for suppliers are accurately input.

Management Response

Finance Manager - The findings of the Audit report are noted and appropriate action has been taken 
where required. 

A number of the instances of the use of incorrect VAT codes on supplier accounts are of an historic nature; 
and related to suppliers no longer used, but whose details were transferred onto the creditor system when 
the Cedar Finance system was first introduced in 2004.

The report confirms that the control environment within the creditor payment section is satisfactory.

See following page for control table:

Page 61



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

CREDITORS - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

N
ov 2016

Jan 2017

C1. An Accounts Payable/Creditors office 
procedures manual been established and 
is kept up to date. 

Documented procedures were in place covering key activities 
and were available to staff.

G G

C2. Electronic and manual orders are 
properly approved and processed as 
per the Financial Procedure Rules 
(FPR). All electronic orders are goods 
receipted.

Electronic and manual orders have been appropriately 
approved and the amounts have been accurately recorded in 
the financial management system. Orders have been 
processed in line with the FPR.

G G

C3. Invoices are: valid Torridge 
invoices, VAT compliant, and VAT 
amounts are correctly calculated.  

VAT on Creditor invoices has been correctly calculated and 
recorded on the General Ledger. Zero rated supply such as 
water and sewerage had been incorrectly processed as 
exempt. Invalid VAT numbers were recorded for a number of 
suppliers.

A A

C4. Invoices are matched to orders, 
invoice details are checked to the 
system and batch totals are verified. 
Payments are within 30 days of receipt 
of invoice.

Invoices had been matched to their original orders. Invoice 
details were correctly recorded on the Creditor system and 
payment had occurred within 30 days of receipt of invoice 
unless a dispute had been raised with the supplier.

G G

C5. Cheque and BACS control procedures 
are effective and cheque totals are 
reconciled. Cheques and BACS 
remittance advices are promptly and 
independently dispatched to suppliers

Cheques and BACS payments are independently checked 
and approved prior to dispatch.
Remittances are sent to suppliers in all instances, using 
email where possible.

G G

C6. All payments have been authorised 
by a delegated officer and payments 
were promptly posted to the general 
ledger.  

Payments are only made where the invoice or original order 
has been approved by the respective budget holder. It was 
identified that the audit trail within the system can be 
overwritten in error and had occurred in at least one instance. 

A A

C7. Purchasing card usage complies with 
documented and robust procedures.

Purchasing card transactions tested in this audit had been 
appropriately authorised and were within the agreed 
spending limits. All new card holders had been approved and 
were subject to spending limits.

G G

C8. The General Ledger is updated 
automatically for all Accounts Payable 
transactions and the Accounts Payable 
control account is regularly reconciled 
to General Ledger

An independent reconciliation of the Creditor Control Account 
to the General Ledger had taken place promptly on a monthly 
basis and was signed. There are no unexplained variances. G G

C9. Year end controls ensure payments 
relate to the correct accounting periods

We verified that automated and manual routines at year-end 
are in place and working effectively. A sample of transactions 
confirmed accruals had taken place where necessary.

G G

C10. Accounts Payable and e-
Procurement access rights are appropriate 
and effective

System access permissions vary depending upon the user’s 
role. Separation of duties ensure that only budget holders 
can approve orders/payments prior to payment.

G G

C11. Performance of the service is 
effectively managed; targets are set and 
achieved.

Team performance is good and challenging targets such as 
the prompt payment of invoices are being met.

G G

Page 62



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Register of Interests – Good (3/4 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion – No Previous Audit

Background

The Code of Conduct for Officers establishes requirements for officers to declare personal interests. These 
should be submitted in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of taking up their appointment. 

Officers and members are advised to refuse any offers of gifts or hospitality which might be considered to 
be related to the performance of their duties in relation to the Council. The exceptions to the rule are 
modest items not exceeding £5 for employees and £25 for Members. If refusal might cause offence, 
employees are advised to seek advice from the Senior Solicitor or their Head of Service. All gifts or 
hospitality offered to members and officers should be recorded within the relevant Register, whether or not 
the offer was accepted or refused. The Code of Conduct for members also establishes provisions for the 
classification and disclosure of ‘registerable interests’ and ‘prejudicial interests’.

Under the Localism Act 2011, members (including co-opted) must, within 28 days of their appointment, 
notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests they have at the time of appointment. 
Furthermore it is considered an offence under section 34 of the Act if such interests are not declared or if 
members participate in discussion and voting during Council meetings relating to such interests. The 
Monitoring Officer is required to maintain a public register of such interests which must be available through 
the Council’s website.
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that three of the four controls tested were working effectively.  Requirements for a 
centralised register of interests for officers needs to be reviewed. 

Management Response

Senior Solicitor - It is pleasing to see that the audit has confirmed adequate safeguards are in place with 
respect to declarations of interests and gifts and hospitality. It is accepted that the Officer Code of Conduct 
should be amended to more closely reflect actual practice, but it is reassuring that actual practice is 
deemed adequate. 

Risk Area
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Jan 2017

Feb 2017

R1. Individuals or organisations 
could receive an unfair competitive 
advantage in their dealings with the 
Authority  

A robust framework based on the requirements of the Localism 
Act 2011 has been developed to promote high standards and 
ensure that pecuniary and non pecuniary interests are declared. 
Requirements for a centralised register of interests for officers 
should be reviewed and updated.

A A

R2. Accusations of favouritism 
leading to damage to the reputation 
of the Authority

The register of pecuniary interests for members is up to date 
and available for public inspection. Service areas implement 
local procedures that reduce the risk of favouritism occurring.

G G

R3. Opportunity for fraud and 
corruption leading to damage to the 
reputation of the Authority

The Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee investigate 
allegations of misconduct. Local policy and procedures reduce 
the opportunity for fraud and make it clear that any such events 
will be treated seriously.

G G

R4. A lack of transparency and 
openness in dealings with the public 
leading to damage to the reputation 
of the Authority

The website is used to publish information demonstrating 
openness. This includes minutes, the register of members 
interests, gifts and hospitality registers for members and 
officers.

G G

Page 63



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Payroll – Good (10/10 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (March 2016) – Good (7/8 controls effective at the time of publishing)

Background

The Authority’s Payroll process is designed to pay employees, members and a small number of pensioners 
inherited from the five former district Authorities that merged in April 1974 to form the current Torridge 
District Council. The Authority also offers its payroll service to Parish Councils as a method of paying their 
clerks.

The Human Resources team is responsible for maintaining accurate personnel records relating to staff 
employed by the Authority. An off the shelf software package called Sage is used for this, which was 
introduced in July 2008. 

The Exchequer team are responsible for updating and maintaining payroll data. The Bond Teamspirit 
software system is used for this. The System was implemented in April 2014, is hosted by North Devon 
Council and accessed by Torridge via a secure dedicated line. 

The Human Resources and Exchequer teams work closely together and payroll information is only added 
or amended following a formal instruction.

The main aims of the payroll service are to pay the correct people the correct amounts at the correct time. 
    
Opinion 

The audit has found that eight of the ten risk areas tested were mitigated effectively.  Improvements can be 
made with regard to ensuring evidence is retained of the approval of posts/restructures and in the timely 
completion of key reconciliations. 

Management Response

Finance Manager - The delay in undertaking the payroll reconciliation is acknowledged, this task has been 
reassigned to an officer less directly involved in the final accounts process who has the capacity to 
undertake the duties on a more regular basis (the original delay resulting from pressure associated with the 
final accounts closure).

There are some limitations in the existing payroll system in that it does not facilitate the description of an 
existing post to be amended; but requires a new post to be created.  This has created a situation where on 
occasion there are variations in the description of post between HR & Finance. This is not considered a 
significant risk.

HR Manager - I am pleased with the report regarding the sickness procedure and related documentation

Comments regarding the GWAF procedure relate to posts agreed as part of a wider restructure dating back 
to October 2014. Whilst there are numerous e-mails and HR documents which support the filling of these 
posts we will endeavour to record via a GWAF in future.

See following page for control table:

Page 64



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

PAYROLL - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

Risks
Level of Assurance

Jan 2017

Feb 2017

R1. Fraudulent payments to ghost 
employees.

Checks and balances were found which reduce the risk 
of ghost employees being set up. Separation of duties 
throughout the process and the requirement for all 
posts to be approved by the Head of Paid Service 
contribute to this. For three employees however, no 
documented approval was provided.

A G

R2. Payments to incorrect individuals. Experienced staff are used to set up employee 
payments and the details are then checked by two 
independent officers before payments begin.

G G

R3. Payment of incorrect amounts. Spinal point levels are set up on the payroll system 
based on information provided by the HR team. All 
changes to payroll data are subject to validation by two 
independent officers.

G G

R4. Employee hardship as a result of late/non 
payments.

Payments were found to be timely with new starters set 
up promptly, timesheet data entered promptly and 
payroll runs occurring on schedule each month. 

G G

R5. Incorrect statutory deductions resulting in 
financial penalty. 

System parameters relating to Pay As You Earn 
deductions were found to match those as published on 
the Government website.

G G

R6. Inability to produce statutory returns or 
other key documentation such as P11D, P60.

Specialist payroll software is used to ensure the 
necessary returns can be produced. This includes 
Bond Team Spirit and Tax Shield. Data for these 
systems is securely and regularly backed up.

G G

R7. Financial penalties resulting from a data 
breach.

Both Torridge and North Devon Council (who host the 
payroll system) have layers of security reducing the 
risk of unauthorised access from inside or outside of 
the network.

G G

R8. Wastage arising from inefficiencies. Due to the nature of the system and the need to 
ensure probity it is necessary to have a wide range of 
checks and balances in place which invariably involves 
multiple officers. This can be resource intensive, 
however we did not identify any inefficiencies within the 
areas examined.

G G

R9. Material misstatements within the 
Accounts.

Accounting codes used are appropriate and 
reasonable. There are periodic reconciliations between 
the payroll system and general ledger to ensure 
postings are accurate. Some timeliness issues were 
noted.

A G

R10. Reputational damage to the Authority, 
e.g. as a result of fraud or data breach

Effective actions are used to reduce opportunities for 
fraud and prevent unauthorised access to or loss of 
data. As such the reputation of the Authority is being 
protected. 

G G

Page 65



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit and Governance Committee
Subject: AGS - Review of Evidence
Date: 14th February 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To satisfy the Committee that the AGS Supporting Evidence reflects the governance framework

1. INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires the 
Council to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control 
environment and to publish this in the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was 
last approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 29th November 2016.  

The Annual Governance Statement was approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 
19th July 2016. 

A process is in place for Members of the Committee to review the evidence to support the 
Statement on a rolling basis. 

2. REPORT

At the meeting on 29th November 2016 it was agreed that the Council should continue to 
look at governance evidence topics on a random basis, chosen by the Chair prior to each 
meeting. The Chair has chosen principle B.2 for review at the meeting on the 14th February 
2017.

Principle B is about Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement. Section B2 is about Engaging comprehensively with institutional 
stakeholders.

A copy of this section of the database is included in Appendix A and Members are invited 
either before, during or any time after the meeting, to select items for further interrogation, 
to satisfy themselves that the evidence accurately reflects the governance framework.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

There is a legal requirement as part of approval of the annual statement of accounts

Financial Implications

None

Page 66

Agenda Item 12



Human Resources Implications

None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications

N/A

Equality/Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment prepared

Risk Management

The evidence supporting the Annual Governance Statement reviews the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and identifies areas for 
improvement that are identified in the action plan.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Approval and adoption of the Annual Governance Statement is a key aspect of 
demonstrating that Torridge District Council has undertaken an annual review of its 
governance framework

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date – Chair of A&G, Councillor Philip Hackett, on 19th January 2017.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Committee having reviewed the evidence to support the Annual Governance 
Statement will then make suggestions to address any areas identified for improvement.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

 The evidence contained in section B2 of the supporting database be noted.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service
Jamie Hollis, Monitoring Officer
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett

Contact Officers: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Supporting Database

Page 67



PRINCIPLE B    
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  

The Local Code should reflect the 
requirement

of local authorities to:

Suggested systems, processes and 
documentation

to demonstrate compliance
2016/17 

Evidence of TDC Compliance
Action 
Req. 
(Y/N)

B2  Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 
90%

Leader and HoPS hold regular meetings with 
key stakeholders - Leader & Chief Exec of DCC, 
Mayors and Town Clerks, ND, Chamber of 
Commerce, Westward Housing.  They also 
attend Devon wide meetings.

 

Agenda Holsworthy Area Advisory, 31 October 2016  
Mayors and town clerks meeting agenda  
Communications Strategy - January 2017  

B2.1 Effectively engaging with 
institutional stakeholders  to ensure 
that the purpose, objectives and 
intended outcomes for each 
stakeholder relationship are clear 
so that outcomes are achieved 
successfully and sustainably

Communication Strategy

Consultation Strategy - January 2017  
A Joint Devon Authorities Strategic Waste 
Committee has been set up to enable a 
more strategic approach with regard to 
both waste collection, treatment and 
disposal operations, as well as 
strengthening demand management and 
waste prevention measures. 

Full Council Minutes March 2016  B2.2 Developing formal and informal 
partnerships to allow for resources 
to be used more efficiently and 
outcomes achieved more 
effectively 

A shared service arrangement constituted 
under s20 of the Local Government Act 
2000 for providing Internal Audit services. 
The arrangements with DAP has resulted 
in financial savings for Torridge whilst still 
delivering the required level of assurance 
to Members. 

Full Council Minutes - December 2016  

P
age 68

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Agenda%20Holsworthy%20Area%20Advisory,%2031%20October%202016.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Mayors%20and%20town%20clerks%20meeting%20agenda.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Communications%20Strategy%20-%20January%202017.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Consultation%20Strategy%20-%20January%202017.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Full%20Council%20-%2021%20March%202016%20-%20Minutes.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Full%20Council%20Minutes%20-%20December%202016.pdf


Database of stakeholders with whom the 
Authority should engage and for what 
purpose and a record of an assesment of 
the effectiveness of any changes

Stakeholder database maintained by Corporate 
Services

Needs to 
be 

reviewed - 
last 

updated 
2013

Partnership framework The Partnership Protocol provides a guide to the 
key processes that should be followed when 
establishing and maintaining effective 
partnerships.

 B2.3 Ensuring that partnerships are 
based on: Trust; A Shared 
Commitment to Change; A Culture 
that Promotes and Accepts 
Challenge Among Partners; and 
that the added value of partnership 
working is explicit.

Partnership protocols Partnership Protocol  

P
age 69

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Evidence/Partnership%20Protocol.pdf


Audit  & Governance Committee  

Torridge District Council 

Progress Report and Update  

Year ended 31 March 2017 
February 2017 

Geraldine Daly 

Engagement Lead 

T 0117 305 7741 

E  geri.daly@uk.gt.com 

Mark Bartlett 

Engagement Manager 

T 0117 305 7896 

E  mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com 

Peter Brereton 

Executive 

T   0117 305 7888 

E   peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 13



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

2 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 71



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

3 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications: 

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/ 

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/ 

• New laws to prevent fraud may affect the public sector (November 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/new-laws-to-prevent-fraud-may-affect-the-public-sector/ 

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/ 

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive 

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager. 

This paper provides the Audit and Governance 

Committee with a report on progress in delivering our 

responsibilities as your external auditors.  

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 72

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

4 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at 2 February 2017 

2015/16 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Grant Claims 
• Housing benefits subsidy claim 

 

Sept – Nov 2016 

 

Complete 

We certified the Council's housing benefits subsidy claim on 28 

November 2016, meeting the 30 November deadline. The outcome 

of this work is reported in the Annual Certification Letter, which is a 

separate item on the agenda of this meeting. 

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Fee Letter  
We were required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the 

end of April 2016. 
April 2016 Yes The 2016/17 fee letter was issued in April 2016. 

Accounts Audit Plan 
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016-17 financial statements. 

April 2017 Not yet due 

 

The Audit Plan will be presented to your April meeting. 

 

Interim accounts audit  
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included: 

• updated review of the Council's control environment 

• updated understanding of financial systems 

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems 

• early work on emerging accounting issues 

• early substantive testing 

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment. 

Feb – March 2017 

 

Not yet due 

 

The interim audit is scheduled to start on 20 February 2017. Any issues 

arising from our interim audit will be reported in the Audit Plan to your 

April meeting.. 

 

P
age 73



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

5 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at January 2017 

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Final accounts audit 
Including: 

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements 

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 

• proposed Value for Money conclusion 

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2016/17   

 

July – Sept 2017 

 

Not yet due 

 

The final accounts audit is scheduled to start on 17 July 2017. 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 
The scope of our work is unchanged to 2015/16 and is set out in the 
final guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. 
The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has 
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources". 

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant 
respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people". 

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion 
overall are: 

• Informed decision making 

• Sustainable resource deployment 

• Working with partners and other third parties 

 

Feb – July 2017 

 

Not yet due 

 

The results of our initial risk assessment will be presented in our 

Audit Plan. 

Annual Audit Letter 
A summary of all work completed as part of the 2016/17 audit. 

 

October 2017 

 

Not yet due 

Other activities 
• We held an Income Generation workshop in Exeter on 13 October 2016. The aim of these events is to bring together senior leaders from local government and the private and 

investment sectors to stimulate cross-sector debate and consider current and future funding models. The workshop was attended by your Strategic Manager (Resources). 

• We held Faster Close workshops in Bristol and Exeter during October. The workshops were aimed at local authority practitioners and considered the main factors for authorities to 

consider in accelerating their financial reporting procedures to produce their year-end accounts. The Bristol workshop on 20 October was attended by members of Torridge's 

Finance team. 

P
age 74



Technical Matters 

P
age 75



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

7 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Telling the story – Changes in 2016/17 CIPFA Code 

CIPFA has been working on the 'Telling the Story' project, which aims to streamline the financial statements and improve accessibility to 

the user. This has resulted in changes to CIPFA's 2016/17 Code of  Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the 

Code'). 

 

The main changes affect the presentation of  the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ('CIES'), the Movement in Reserves 

Statement ('MIRS') and segmental reporting disclosures. A new Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been introduced. 

 

The key changes are: 

• the cost of  services in the CIES is to be reported on basis of  the local authority's organisational structure rather than the Service 

Reporting Code of  Practice (SERCOP) headings 

• an 'Expenditure & Funding Analysis' note to the financial statements provides a reconciliation between the way local authorities are 

funded and the accounting measures of  financial performance in the CIES 

• the changes will remove some of  the complexities of  the current segmental note 

• other changes to streamline the current MIRS providing options to report Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (previously 

shown as Surplus and Deficit on the Provision of  Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure lines) and removal of  

earmarked reserves columns. 

 

Other amendments have been made to the Code: 

• changes to reporting by pension funds in relation to the format and fair value disclosure requirements to reflect changes to the 

Pensions SORP 

• other amendments and clarifications to reflect changes in the accounting standards. 

 

 

 

P
age 76



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

8 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Delivering Good Governance 

In April, CIPFA and SOLACE published 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)' and this applies to 

annual governance statements prepared for the 2016/17 financial year. 

 

The key focus of  the framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental – and the need to focus on the longer term and 

the impact actions may have on future generations. 

 

Local authorities should be: 

• reviewing existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in the Framework 

• developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of  governance, including arrangements for ensuring on-going effectiveness  

• reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and on how they have monitored the effectiveness of  their 

governance arrangements in the year and on planned changes.  

 

The framework applies to all parts of  local government and its partnerships and should be applied using the spirit and ethos of  the 

Framework rather than just rules and procedures. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 77



 Sector issues and developments 

P
age 78



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

10 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

National Audit Office reports 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/overview-local-government/ 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/ 

 

Below is a selection of reports issued during 2016 which may be of interest to Audit Committee members.  Please see the website for all 

reports issued by the NAO.  

P
age 79

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

11 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Local Government Association  
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to audit committee members. Thee are available on the website:    

A councillor's workbook on neighbourhood and community 

engagement 

11 January 2017 

Neighbourhood and community engagement has a rightful place as one of the key 

processes involved in planning and decision making. As such, it should not be 

viewed d as an additional task, but as a core part of the business   

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications 

The Local Government Association (LGA) Housing Commission was established to 

help councils deliver their ambition for places. It has been supported by a panel of 

advisers and has engaged with over 100 partners; hearing from councils, 

developers, charities, health partners, and many others. All partners agree that 

there is no silver bullet, and all emphasise the pivotal role of councils in helping 

provide strong leadership, collaborative working, and longer-term certainty for 

places and the people that live there.   

22 December 2016 

Building our homes, communities and future: The LGA 

housing commission final report 

Provisional LG Finance Settlement for 2017/18 
 

12 January 2017 

The LGA has published its responses to the DCLG  consultation on proposals for the local government 

finance settlement for 2017 to 2018 and for the approach to future local government finance settlements.  

 
http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/8150261/Local+Government+Finance+Settlement+1718+LG

A+response.pdf/dd8d32e1-ec9f-4314-8121-7aae2195f89f 

P
age 80



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

12 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Local Government Association  
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to audit committee members. Thee are available on the LGA website:    

Stronger together: shared management in local government 

29 November 2016 

Around 45 councils across England share a chief executive and senior 

management team in about 20 different partnerships. Most also share at least 

some services. These councils have already delivered savings of at least £60 

million through greater efficiencies and the other benefits of collaboration, with 

more savings planned 

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications 

Adult social care funding: 2016 state of the nation report 

 
2 November 2016 

Adult social care is an absolutely vital public service that supports some of our most 

vulnerable people and promotes the wellbeing and independence of many more 

Business Plan December 2016/November 2017 

 
30 December 2016 

Britain's exit from the EU means that we are reshaping the way our country is run. 

Our vision is one of a rejuvenated local democracy, where power from Westminster 

and from the EU is significantly devolved to local level and citizens feel they have a 

meaningful vote and real reason to participate in civic life and their communities. P
age 81



 Grant Thornton 

P
age 82



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

14 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Integrated Reporting  
 

Looking beyond the report 

The move away from reporting based on historic financial 

information is beginning to gain momentum and 

Integrated Reporting is now mandatory in some countries.  

In the UK, CIPFA proposed in their consultation 

document that the narrative report from 2017/18 reflects 

elements of the International Integrated Reporting 

Council's framework whilst the Treasury is encouraging 

public sector organisations to adopt Integrated Reporting. 

Integrated reporting: Looking beyond the report was produced by 

our global Integrated Reporting team, based in the UK, 

New Zealand and South Africa, to help organisations 

obtain the benefits of Integrated Reporting.  

The International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) 

describes Integrated Reporting as "enhancing  

the way organisations think, plan and report the story of their 

business." 

At Grant Thornton, we fully agree with this and, in our 

view, the key word is 'enhancing' because a lot of the 

elements to support effective Integrated Reporting are 

likely to be in place already.  

But anyone focussing purely on the production of the 

report itself will not reap the full benefits that effective 

Integrated Reporting can offer. 

 

 

 

 

Instead, think of Integrated Reporting as demonstrating 

"integrated thinking" across your entire organisation, with 

the actual report being an essential element of it.  

Our methodology is based on six modules which are 

designed to be independent of each other. 

1. Secure support – effective Integrated Reporting 

needs leadership from the top. 

2. Identify stakeholders – who are they and how can 

you engage with them? 

3. Identify the capitals for your organisation – what 

resources do you use to create value? 

4. What do you have – and what do you need? – do 

you have the data you need and is it accurate? 

5. Set limits and create  boundaries – make sure your 

report is focussed. 

6. Review and improve – Integrated Reporting is a 

continuous learning process. 

 

Our approach to Integrated Reporting is deliberately 

simple; experience has shown us that this works best. 

Things are often only complicated because people made 

them that way. 

Please speak to your Engagement Lead if you would like 

to discuss this further. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton publications 

P
age 83



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

15 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Integrated Thinking and Reporting 
 

Focusing on value creation in the 

public sector   

Grant Thornton has seconded staff to the International 

Integrated Reporting Council on a pro bono basis for a 

number of years. 

They have been working on making the principles of 

Integrated Reporting  <IR> relevant to the public sector  

and co-authored a recent report by CIPFA and the World 

Bank: Integrated thinking and reporting: focusing on value creation 

in the public sector  - an introduction for leaders. 

Around one third of global gross domestic product (GDP) 

is made up by the public sector and this is being invested 

in ensuring there is effective infrastructure, good 

educational opportunities and reliable health care. In many 

ways, it is this investment by the public sector that is 

helping to create the conditions for wealth creation and 

preparing the way for the success of this and future 

generations. 

Traditional reporting frameworks, focussed only on 

historic financial information, are not fit-for-purpose for 

modern, multi-dimensional public sector organisations.  

Integrated Reporting supports sustainable development 

and financial stability and enables public sector 

organisations to broaden the conversation about the 

services they provide and the value they create. 

 

 

The public sector faces multiple challenges, including: 

• Serving and being accountable to a wide stakeholder 

base; 

• Providing integrated services with sustainable 

outcomes; 

• Maintaining a longer-term perspective, whilst 

delivering in the short term; and  

• Demonstrating the sustainable value of services 

provided beyond the financial. 

 

The <IR> Framework is principle based and enables 

organisations to tailor their reporting to reflect their own 

thinking and strategies and to demonstrate they are 

delivering the outcomes they were aiming for. 

Integrated Reporting can help public sector organisations 

deal with the above challenges by: 

• Addressing diverse and often conflicting public 

accountability requirements; 

• Focussing on the internal and external consequences 

of an organisation's activities; 

• Looking beyond the 'now' to the 'near' and then the 

'far'; 

• Considering the resources used other than just the 

financial. 

 

The report includes examples of how organisations have 

benefitted from Integrated Reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CIPFA Publications 

P
age 84



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

16 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Apprentice Levy-Are you prepared? 
What is the levy? 

The UK has been struggling on productivity, now 

estimated to be 20% behind the G7 average. Developing 

apprenticeships is set to play a key part in tackling this and 

bridging the skills gap. 

Announced by government in July 2015, the levy is to 

encourage employers to offer apprenticeships in meeting 

their skill, workforce and training needs, developing talent 

internally.  The levy is designed to give more control to 

employers, through direct access to training funds and 

creation of apprenticeships through the Trailblazer 

process. 

What is the levy? 

From April 2017, the way the government funds 

apprenticeships in England is changing. Some employers 

will be required to pay a new apprenticeship levy, and 

there will be changes to the funding for apprenticeship 

training for all employers. 

All employers will receive an allowance of £15,000 to 

offset against payment of the levy. This effectively means 

that the levy will only be payable on paybill in excess of £3 

million per year. 

The levy will be payable through Pay As You Earn 

(PAYE) and will be payable alongside income tax and 

National Insurance. 

Each employer will receive one allowance to offset against 

their levy payment. There will be a connected persons rule, 

similar the Employment Allowance connected persons 

rule, so employers who operate multiple payrolls will only 

be able to claim one allowance. 

Employers in England are also able to get 'more out than they put 

in', through an additional government top-up of 10% to their levy 

contribution.  

When employers want to spend above their total levy amount, 

government will fund 90% of the cost for training and assessment 

within the funding bands. 

The existing funding model will continue until the levy comes into 

effect May 2017. The levy will apply to employers across all sectors. 

Paybill will be calculated based on total employee earnings subject 

to Class1 National Insurance Contributions. It will not include 

other payments such as benefits in kind. It will apply to total 

employee earnings in respect of all employees. 

What will the levy mean in practice  

Employer of 250 employees, each with a gross salary of £20,000: 

Paybill: 250 x £20,000 = £5,000,000 

Levy sum: 0.5% x   = £25,000 

Allowance: £25,000 - £15,000 = £10,000 annual levy  

How can I spend my levy funds? 

The funding can only be used to fund training and assessment 

under approved apprenticeship schemes. It cannot be used on 

other costs associated with apprentices, including wages and 

remuneration, or training spend for the wider-team. 

Through the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), set  up by 

government, employers will have access to their funding in the 

form of digital vouchers to spend on training.  

Training can be designed to suit the needs of your organisation and 

the requirements of the individual in that role, in addition to 

specified training for that apprenticeship. Training providers must 

all be registered with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What do I need to start 

thinking about now? 

• How much is the levy going 

to cost and have we 

budgeted for it? 

• How do we ensure 

compliance with the new 

system? 

• Which parts of my current 

spend on training are 

applicable to 

apprenticeships? 

• Are there opportunities to 

mitigate additional cost 

presented by the levy? 

• How is training in my 

organisation structured? 

• How do we develop and 

align to our workforce 

development strategy 

Grant Thornton update 

P
age 85



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

17 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Off-payroll working in the public sector 

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech 

delivered a number of changes that will impact the UK 

business environment and raise considerations for you as 

an employer.  

In particular, the Chancellor announced that the measures 

that were proposed in Budget 2016 that could affect 

services supplied through personal service companies 

(PSCs) to the public sector will be implemented.  

At present, the so-called IR35 rules require the worker to 

decide whether PAYE and NIC are due on the payments 

made by a PSC following an engagement with a public 

sector body. The onus will be moved to the payer from 

April 2017. This might be the public sector body itself, but 

is more likely to be an intermediary, or, if there is a supply 

chain, to the party closest to the PSC. 

The public sector body (or the party closest to the PSC) 

will need to account for the tax and NIC and include 

details in their RTI submission.  

The existing IR35 rules will continue outside of public 

sector engagements. 

HMRC Digital Tool – will aid with determining whether 

or not the intermediary rules apply to ensure of 

“consistency, certainty and simplicity” 

When the proposals were originally made, the public 

sector was defined as those bodies that are subject to 

the Freedom of Information rules. It is not known at 

present whether this will be the final definition. 

Establishing what bodies are caught is likely to be 

difficult however the public sector is defined. 

A further change will be that the 5% tax free 

allowance that is given to PSCs will be removed for 

those providing services to the public sector.  

Impact 

• Increased costs 

• Responsibility moved to the engager 

• Increased risks for the engager 

• Consider current arrangements in place 

 

 

Areas / risks to consider 

• Interim and / or temporary staff engaged through 

an intermediary or PSC 

• Where using agencies ensure they’re UK based and 

operating PAYE 

• Update on-boarding / procurement systems, 

processes and controls  

• Additional take on checks and staff training / 

communications  

• Review of existing PSC contractor population 

before April 2017  

• Consider moving long term engagements onto 

payroll 

P
age 86



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

18 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Salary Sacrifice Arrangements-Autumn Statement 

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech 

delivered a number of changes that will impact the UK 

business environment and raise considerations for you as 

an employer.  

In particular, the proposals from earlier this year to limit 

the tax and NIC advantages from salary sacrifice 

arrangements in conjunction with benefits will be 

implemented from April 2017.  

Although we await the details, it appears that there is a 

partial concession to calls made by Grant Thornton UK 

and others to exempt the provision of cars from the new 

rules (to protect the car industry). Therefore, the changes 

will apply to all benefits other than pensions (including 

advice), childcare, Cycle to Work schemes and ultra-low 

emission cars.   

Arrangements in place before April 2017 for cars, 

accommodation and school fees will be protected until 

April 2021, with others being protected until April 2018. 

These changes will be implemented from April 2017.   

As you can see, there is a limited opportunity to continue 

with salary sacrifice arrangements and a need also to 

consider the choice between keeping such arrangements in 

place – which may still be beneficial – or withdrawing 

from them 

 

What should you be thinking 

about? 

• Review the benefits you offer  - particularly if you 

have a flex renewal coming up  

• Consider your overall Reward and Benefit strategy  

• Consider your Employee communications . 

 

P
age 87



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

19 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Brexit 
 

Planning can help organisations 

reduce the impact of  Brexit 

Several months have passed since the referendum to leave 

the European Union (EU), during which there has been a 

flurry of political activity, including the party conference 

season. 

After many years of relative stability, organisations will 

need to prepare themselves for a period of uncertainty and 

volatility and will need to keep their risk registers under 

constant review. The outcome of the US Presidential 

election in November 2016 has added to this uncertainty. 

The High Court ruling that Parliament should have a say 

before the UK invokes Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty – 

which triggers up to two years of formal EU withdrawal 

talks – will not, in our view, impact on the final outcome. 

There appears to be a general political consensus that 

Brexit does mean Brexit, but we feel there could be 

slippage beyond the original timetable which expected to 

see the UK leave the EU by March 2019.  

2017 elections in The Netherlands (March), France 

(April/May), and Germany (October/November) will 

complicate the Brexit negotiation process and timeline at a 

time when Brexit is more important for the UK than it is 

for the remaining 27 Member States 

 

The question still remains, what does Brexit look like?  

While there may be acceptance among politicians that the 

UK is leaving the EU, there is far from any agreement on 

what our future relationship with the continent should be. 

So, what do we expect based on what has happened so 

far? 

Existing EU legislation will remain in force  

We expect that the Government will introduce a “Repeal 

Act” (repealing the European Communities Act of 1972 

that brought us into the EU) in early 2017. 

As well as undoing our EU membership, this will 

transpose existing EU regulations and legislation into UK 

law. We welcome this recognition of the fact that so 

much of UK law is based on EU rules and that trying to 

unpick these would not only take many years but also 

create additional uncertainty. 

Taking back control is a priority 

It appears that the top priority for government is 'taking 

back control', specifically of the UK's borders. Ministers 

have set out proposals ranging from reducing our 

dependence on foreign doctors or cutting overseas 

student numbers. The theme is clear: net migration must 

fall. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leaving the Single Market appears likely 

The tone and substance of Government speeches on 

Brexit, coupled with the wish for tighter controls on 

immigration and regulation, suggest a future where the 

UK enjoys a much more detached relationship with the 

EU. 

Potential existing examples for the UK's future 

relationship, such as the 'Norwegian' or 'Swiss' models, 

seem out of the question. The UK wants a 'bespoke deal'. 

Given the rhetoric coming from Europe, our view is that 

this would signal an end to the UK's membership of the 

Single Market. With seemingly no appetite to amend the 

four key freedoms required for membership, the UK 

appears headed for a so-called 'Hard Brexit'. It is possible 

that the UK will seek a transitional arrangement, to give 

time to negotiate the details of our future trading 

relationship. 

Grant Thornton update 

P
age 88



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

20 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Brexit 
 

This is of course, all subject to change, and, politics, 

especially at the moment, moves quickly. 

Where does this leave the public sector? 

After a relatively stable summer, we expect there will be 

increased volatility as uncertainty grows approaching the 

formal negotiation period. 

Planning can help organisations 

reduce the impact of  Brexit 

The chancellor has acknowledged the effect this may 

have on investment and signalled his intention to support 

the economy, delaying plans to get the public finances 

into surplus by 2019/20.  

We expect that there will be some additional government 

investment in 2017, with housing and infrastructure being 

the most likely candidates. 

Clarity is a long way off. However, public sector 

organisations should be planning now for making a 

success of a hard Brexit, with a focus on: 

Staffing – organisations should begin preparing for 

possible restrictions on their ability to recruit migrant 

workers and also recognise that the UK may be a less 

attractive place for them to live and work. Non-UK 

employees might benefit from a degree of reassurance as 

our expectation is that those already here will be allowed to 

stay. Employees on short term or rolling contracts might 

find it more difficult to stay over time. 

Financial viability – public sector bodies should plan 

how they will overcome any potential shortfalls in funding 

(e.g. grants, research funding or reduced student numbers). 

Market volatility – for example pension fund and 

charitable funds investments and future treasury 

management considerations. 

International collaboration – perhaps a joint venture or 

PPP scheme with an overseas organisation or linked 

research projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton update 

For regular updates on Brexit, please see 

our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insig

hts/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-

the-debate/  

P
age 89

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and update – Torridge District Council 

21 © 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Grant Thornton Events 
Joint Venture Seminar , 6th December  - Taunton 

Following the publication of  our 'Better Together' report we hosted a seminar in Taunton.  The 

session included presentations from some of  the practitioners interviewed in researching our report. 

Local government continues to innovate and change, as it looks for ways to protect front line 

services we are expecting to see an increase in the number of  Joint Ventures (JVs) for service 

delivery being established. Our event provided an invaluable insight into setting up and running  JVs 

and was attended by 22 officers and members from Councils in the South West, including Steve 

Hearse from Torridge District Council.  

Attendees heard from Arthur Hooper, Group MD of  CORSERV, who shared his experiences of  

developing the newly formed JV with Nottinghamshire County Council for Highways, highlighting 

the importance of  collaborative partnership working and staff  engagement.  

Mark Cook, Partner at Anthony Collins Solicitors discussed the legal implications to consider when 

setting up a JV.  

Sophie Hosking, Executive Director – Service Delivery and Commercial Development, South Ham 

District and West Devon Borough Council highlighted their journey so far in establishing a joint 

local authority company and why they are exploring this route.  

Mike Britch, Norse Group MD discussed how the Norse Group have established 25 JVs with local 

authority partners and highlighted the importance of  using JVs to change the outcome in service 

delivery and client commissioning as well as ensuring arrangements are not too complex.  

The morning ended with a panel session where our speakers were joined by Sally McKinlay (Tax 

Director – Grant Thornton).  

You can download a copy of  the Grant 

Thornton report – Better Together from our 

website at 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/b

uilding-a-successful-joint-venture-company 

Hard copies are also available from your 

Engagement Lead and Audit Manager. 

 

 

P
age 90

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/building-a-successful-joint-venture-company


‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member firms, as the context requires.  

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions.  

grantthornton.co.uk 

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft 

P
age 91



       .

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2016/17

Cycle 
1

Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 
4

Cycle 5 Cycle 
6

Cycle 7 Cycle 8

19/7/2016 23/8/16 29/11/16 14/2/2017 18/4/2017
Appointment of 
External Auditor

Appointment of 
External Auditor

Appointment of 
External Auditor

Appointment of 
External Auditor

Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules

Anti Fraud, 
Corruption & Bribery 

Policy
Annual Governance 

Statement: final 
review

Code of Corporate 
Governance

Whistleblowing 
Policy Draft AGS

Governance

AGS Review of 
Evidence: Principle 

4.2

AGS Review of 
Evidence: Principle 

4.3

Discussion about the 
new Evidence 

Database

AGS Review of 
Evidence

Audit 
Committee

Effectiveness of 
Audit Committee

Effectiveness of the 
Audit Committee – 

Update

Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee

Risk 
Management

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register

Audit Manager’s 
Opinion

Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2017/18

Progress with 
Agreed Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with
Agreed Actions

Audit Reports Issued Audit Reports Issued Audit Reports Issued Audit Reports Issued Audit Reports Issued
Internal Audit

Governance Training 
(DAP & GT)

Draft Accounts Presentation & 
Approval of Accounts

Working in Partnership 
with DAP Accounts Preparation for the 

2016/17 Accounts
Early Closure of the 
2016/17 Accounts

Update report Update report Update report Update report
Audit Findings 

Report
Annual Audit Letter Annual Certification 

Letter
2017/18 Audit Fee 

Letter
Letter of 

Representation External Audit Plan
External 
Audit

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 14



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	9 Annual Certification Letter
	10 Anti Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy and Whistleblowing Policy
	Appendix A - Anti Fraud Policy
	Appendix B Whistleblowing Policy
	Whistleblowing Policy 2017 changes
	Employee Guide triple fold 2016 highlighted
	Manager's Guide triple fold 2016 highlighted


	11 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	12 Review of Governance Evidence - Principle B2
	13 Grant Thornton Update Report
	14 Forward Plan
	17 Audit Reports Issued to Date - Cyber Security Audit

